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The LOXLEY'S and the

WARAET2

The end of the American
Revolution saw thousands of
loyalist families flee north to
Canada to start a new life. The
Loxley family settled near
Queenston, building a family home
and farm, far from the conflict and
persecution they experienced

being on the losing side of
America’s quest for political

freedom.

Now, with American politicians
looking to ignite hostilities with
Britain once more, the Loxleys find
themselves on the front line of
another war that again pits friend
and neighbour against each other.
With their men enlisting in the
Canadian militia, it is left to the
Loxley women to keep the

family together and the farm
producing enough food for their
survival through the tough winters.

The war will pass through their
home as renegade soldiers raid
along the border, stripping families
of their possessions and burning
houses to the ground. The political
manoeuvrings of those in power is,
as always, felt most by the ordinary
folk on both sides as the inevitable
victims of war.
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Major General Isaac Brock
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The harvest is in, and — F o b NI

praise the Lord!—itis a
good one.

ch
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We have corn to take to the grinding mill
in Queenston, and the vegetable patches
have proved to be a cornucopia. A fine crop

of apples means I will be kept busy for weeks,
making us pickles and preserves to tide us
through the winter.

It is true to say I never miss

our old home in Pennsylvania,
although not a day passes
e but I wish Abraham was
~— still alive. = e =
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b The American War of Indepen- | ' P IWILLBE
| dence changed everything 3 ' 'HEF;?;;%‘E,NTWJ ).
| for ue. AFter Abe was killed s FIRT "
fighting for the British, our § Viiiis neccora b 1
neighbours made it difficult H:N,;, "éi%ggﬁ T.‘Ef? —
| TWINS.

A
loved it here on
Tthe Niagara _
OTHER!
Y ELIZA NEEDS YOUR HELP
TO SET THINGS WP FOR
TONIGHT'S HARVEST
CELEBRATION.

7 GEORGE! VERITY!
LEAVE OFF PLAYING WITH THAT
HOUND, AND GO HELP YOUR
FATHER IN THE HOUSE,

_____—-—--'.'—,

. = T > )
Y MADAME AURORA, N Y YOU MAY USE YOUR FRENCH N HALF THE NEIGHBORHOOD
HOW MAY I HELP YOU CHARM TO ASK ELLEN TO HELP WILL BE HERE SOON. WE MUST
ON THIS FINE AUTUMN & S0 HER MOTHER IN THE KITCHEN, NOT STINT ON FEEDING
. DAYZ o D PIERRE. = THEM/ X
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LAURA!
HOW ARE YOU
AND JAMES

KEEPING?

WE ARE WELL, :
y ELIZA. ALTHOUGH MY
G000 MAN HERE SPENDS
HIs TIME WORRYING )
ABOUT WAR WITH /&
AMERICAZ

=V WELL, THEY HAVE 50 i — NOT TON:'GHT,\,% ~YOU HAVE A
[ MANY REASONS, YOU SEE. FOR T N JAMES, TONIGHT 15 FOR FINE EYE INDEED,
S EXAMPLE, THE WAY THE BRITISH B8 CELEBRATION, WILLIAM.
COME--

STOP AND SEARCH AMERICAN i
VESSELS-- :
. T YOU MUST PANCE
ITH ME/!

SECORD.
WITH MY POOR
HEALTH, I CAN'T
DO MUCH
PANCING.

B\ 15 My ONLY )
\_ TALENT/
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GREETINGS,
STRANGER,

THEN YOU ARE A BOOPD FIFTY
MILES TOO FAR EAST. BUT YOU WILL

NOT BE RETRACING YOUR STEPS TODAY--

DARKNESS |15 NOT FAR OFF,
AND YOUR HORSE |15 WELL-
LATHERED.

AARON LOXLEY! WHERE
ARE YOWR MANNERS? INVITE
YOUR COMPANION IN FOR A

BITE OF DINNER.

AYE, GO ON,
SR, I'LL FEED AND
WATER YOUR MOUNT,
AND GIVE HIM A

RUBDOWN BEFOEE/
I JOIN YOU. ¢

. TR ST
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FOR WHAT WE
ARE ABOWT TO RECEIVE,
MAY THE LORD MAKE Us
TRULY THANKFUL.

[ SETTLEMENT FOUNDED 8Y THE

I PROPHETSTOWN? THE

\ SHAWNEE INDIAN LEADER, 4
D TECUMSEH? _4

”'TLS

ALL

|

e

W RABGIT STEW,
i BUT HOT AND

\NOURISHING, FOR SBEE=SP™ 1 HAVE RIDDEN FROM

f’ : KNOWN AS T/PPECANOE N |
e THE INDIANA TERRITORY.

7 T SMELLS WONDERFLL, N
MAAM. My FIRST PROPER
MEAL IN FOUR DAYS. 4

=

ONLY

VHAT a PROPHETS TOWN, ALSO

Y AVE--AND HIS BROTHER ¥
LALAWETHIKA, WHO

THEY ALSO C
" PRO

IT 15 TECUMSEH'S DREAM

70 FOUND A FEPERATION

OF NAT/VE PEOPLES, A

LAND WITHIN A LAND;, AS IT &

) WERE. HE IS SET ON

{ ENDING THE AMERICANS’

| RELENTLESS EXPANSION £
B WESTWARD.

PHET.” _

| THIS MYSTERIOUS |

ALL “THE NEWS, SIR?

S

EARS. BUT YOU |
WILL HEAR OF IT |
SOON ENOUGH.

i L

“HUNDREDS OF /NPIANS --POTAWATOM/,
KICKAPOO, PELAWARE AND OTHERS--
ANSWERED TECUMSEH'S CALL, THEY FOUNDED
THEIR NEW SETTLEMENT ON THE WASASH




&5
2 GREAT SPIRIT HAS sPOKEN ,
XY TO ME. HE HAS SAID: “TELL MY :
PEOPLE TO FOREGO THE WAYS OF P WP GREAT 2PIRIT
THE WHITE MAN. TELL THEM ¥ HAS ALSO SAID: “PUT

THEY MUST RETURN TO THE DOWN THE MUSKET, AND
OLD WAaAyEs” - / TAKE UP THE BOW AND THE

- TOMAHAWK, DO THAT,
===\ AND I WILL MAKE YOUR
WARRIORS
INVINC/BLE,., -

‘...WHJLE THE
WHITE MAN WILL
PERISH!”

THE AMERICANS -
ARE TERRIFIED AT THE _
¥ THOUEGHT OF AN INDIAN AN ' 3,4}‘?29;’4?%%;”
FEDERATION, TAKING ADPVANTAGE i TELL Ugf
OF TECUMSEH'S ABSENCE, THEY - =
A\ SENT THEIR CHIEF INDIAN AGENT,
HARR/SON, WITH AN 4
ARMY Oir\ ENTHDUSAN 4

S| ‘SCOUTS SAW HARRISON'S ADVANCE, AND
THE PROPHET PECIDED TO ATTACK FIRST, THEY
AMBUSHED THE AMERICANS AT NIGHT..,

e

—| “...BUT THE INDIANS WERE

OUTNUMBERED. HARRISON'S

FORCES PROVE THEM BACK--

THEN SWARMED INTO THE
TOWN/"




MY TIME HAS V/
COME. BUT YOU MUsST )/
ESCAPE!

S Now UrN il €
S THE sAvAGES WL (@
TOWN TO THE A8 &
“GROUND! Mt ]




" THEY HAVE
7 KILLED YOU, FATHER,BUT
2-”“5 1 SWEAR BEFORE )

THE GREAT SPIRIT /

HIMSELF-- 2

"1 DO NOT LIK
MEAN WARZ

= THi5, STRANGER! COULD [T

--YOUR SON,
( FIREBRAND WILL
AVENGE YOU! -

4 ‘ =\ HENRY CLAY AND HIs WAR
ST\ HAWK'S MAKE MUCH NOISE 4
Z

AR IN WASHINGTON.
: é‘ 7 THIS 16 :
2 #( WHY YORK MUST BE )

"";) ‘._}_}' f WARNED!
(2 THANK

¥ \\7
, ( “ yOU FOR YOUR \i
‘ f\ HOSPITALITY. IF
AN/ I MAY., 4
—

e

—-AND WITH THE =

[ WHAT ZAY YOU,
PA? DOES WAR
COME TO THE
\ CANADAS? 4

"I WILL SLEEP BY YOUR )
\ HEARTH, AND BE ON MY
. WAY AT DAWN.,

/ GENERAL BROCK MAY KEEP
THE INDIANS IN CHECK,..BUT A
COLD WIND BLOWS THROUGH

7/ BRITISH CHASING NAPOLEON’S
GRANPE ARMEE ALL AROLIND
EUROPE...

J

/W MAYBE
/" PRESIDENT
/ MADISON THINKS
THEY WILL BE
UNABLE--OR |
UNWILLING -- /
TO DEFEND /

Us,

My sOuUL.

~ 1 FEAR THAT,
/ SOONER OR LATER,
THE AMERICANS WILL
Flwgoa;mvexcuss
ADE. _~

==

AMERICA'S
AMBITION FOR
LAND MAY NEVER
BE QUENCHED--




Tecumseh campaign
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TO THE T ES AND DESOLA‘f ITH oy had changed,
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OF ENOWNIOTS T B great Britain.
PEACE!

I| reaponse Lo their inoquiries, Dragging
| Canoe held up the war pelts hetl
\ accepted when the delegation visited United States with ¥rance
| Chota in 1776 and said, "We aré not yet \oninercourse Continental Blockade againdh Bl
| conspered: T cement the alliance, the ; on failed 0 But Franco-Russian relations D&
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Montgomery. oating  fown the besident jnitiatives (Davout remained 1
g - 18 June 1612. The thronghout  the ar)
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then bhecame dire when

Republican Tarty
n the House Of
he vote was 79 to 4

Tennessee in 2 feet of Angout £anoes,
they djsem'l:ar‘lwl and destroyed the
\ elevei LoWnS in the jmmediate
| Chickamans? area and most of their
fooll  SpPY along with MeDonald's
home and gtore. Whatever Wad not onate, 19 W0 3. The
destroyed wad unnﬁmmtad and sold ab hose constituents
the point Where the trail pback to the - England) depended
with Great Britain,
France equally

Holston croasel
Apericaln nentrality;
& declaration of war

Wellesley arrived 10 ol
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1

Fuented o Onoro:
Viscount Beresford fought
of the gouth 0 |
standstill at the Battie of 1
May sWellington was prov

General for his services

abandoned Almel A
¢rom British pursuit,

In the meantime, Dragging Canoe anil
| John McDonald Were jeading the
y Cherokee and fifty TLoyalist Rangers in

e and South Caroling

ambarg? B e

2cOnOTnit pressure wonld force the £ L.
velligerents 0 negotiate with the An thus we can gee that all these
Tinited States. The }Zonim'mrrs,tinn Act events have been poiling and prewing in
20T 4 o the Embargo: the packground in both countries.
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g

Runnerz have been despatohed |

through Upper and Lower £z

Canada with the worst news &7
- of all: we are at war with
America.

" MA! MAZ PAS
PACKING HIS THINGS! HE sAYS
HE's GOING OFF TO FIGHT THE

g

AMERICANS!

YOUR OWN FATHER IN WAR,. WILL YOU

PUT YOUR CHILDEN THROUWGH WANT TO FIGHT,

7 ELIZA. BUT IF I DO
- - THE SANE Mgty NOT, MY CHILDREN WILL
i BECOME AMERICAN
' : ‘s SLAVES!
il : -l ‘- > : i
L = Y { R
'/ % Y Ny
i \ /' .
N i ! fl
7 iy
/ i {md

RN
i
-
f
——
.
r

- - & = |
1S THIS TRUE, AARONZ YOU LOST ’ I DO NOT X wr

I1& MATTHEW NOT RIGHT,
FATHER? WHAT DIFFERENCE DOES
IT MAKE IF WE ARE RULED BY
A KING OR A PRESIDENT? WE
FARM THE LAND WHOEVER I

THIS IS ABSURD! HOW CAN YOU
EVEN THINK OF FIGHTING WITH OUR ¥
NEIGHBOURS ACROSS THE NIAGARAZ
WE TRADE WITH THEM EACH

RULES Us!

I AM WITH YOU,
SIR! SOMETIMES A MAN
MUST FIGHT FOR WHAT 1 BEG YOU,
HE BELIEVES IN, /' PIERRE--CHANGE YOUR
MIND. STAY WITH YOUR
FAMILY!

THE LAND
WE FARM |15 OUR
LAND, CANAPIAN |
LAND, THEY WANT /
TO TAKE IT-- _~

" CANNOT ALLOW

A
--AND WE
THEM TO!

IT 15
TO PROTECT
OUR FAMILY THAT
I MUET &0,




o N -

"60 WITH YOU, AND
BRING YOU SAFELY
BACK TO WS, A

” PERHAPS THEY
WILL 8E PLEASED TO
/\_ SEE ME AGAIN!

AND WHERE ARE
YOU GOING, MATTHEW

LOXLEY?

’ . 1] ‘
(7 1 WOLLD NOT

W BE A MAN IF T ALLOWED

i MY FATHER TO GO ALONE.

i\ LOOK AFTER OUR GIRLS

. UNTIL I RETURN. i &
I |

:' 3

Tea
I cannot speak, for fear of my S
. voice breaking up in torment. AllT J8
______ L =\ can

T

It is one of the saddest days of Lj
my life. Who knows when we shall S
ever meet again as a family? \ (

.........

'. For my Family. |
For Queenston. ‘",
ae For the Canadas...




PAAND R
7~ MATTHEW FENDING Wt oM

FOR THEMSELVES IN HE SAY THEY

CAMPZ THIS T WOULD =LAy
LOVE TO SEE! e-—-— HAVE FOUGHT &

7 SWE HAVE LITTLE
7 FOOD, AND MANY HOWRS
|| EACH DAY ARE SPENT IN

HUNTING AND GATHERING.
FORTUNATELY, THE FRUITS
OF THE LAND ARE 4
PLENTIFUL...”

[t is many yvears since I
have used a musket, and
* my abilities are being sore
3 « festfed by the younger men. j
! Matthew, I am proud fo A4
say, can more than hold

I do hot allow myself 18
1o believe it for one
single instant.

It is @ strange experience, living with a
hundred other men, all of whom share
the same hopes and fears that we do.
' \We try fo keep each other’s spirits
high, for many are saying it will soon
be over, and the Canadas will be
easily overrun. S——

.....

e

T T

Y EEESS

e T
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Your loving
husband, _ :

7 EVERYBODY. NOW,
UNLESS I AM VERY
|| MUCH MISTAKEN, YOU
- ALL HAVE CHORES
TO BE GOING ON

4 2 )
WITH...2 . é%

YN CLOSING, I SEND
ALL OF MY LOVE TO MY FAMILY,
PLEASE HUG ALL OF OUR CHILDREN
ON MY BEHALF, AND TELL THEM I HOPE
TO SEE THEM SOON, WHATEVER

HAPPENS, KNOW THAT 1 SHALL £
LOVE ALL OF YOU, FOR 4

7" MILKING COWS,
/ WHEN I COULD BE
FIGHTING WITH THE |
MILITIA! IT'S NOT 4

/

/

T 5

AT

Al

D5 AVE, THIS 1S ALWAYS THE WAY OF
IT. WHILE THE MENFOLK PLAY THEIR DEADLY

 GAMES, WE WOMEN MUST STAY STRONG? |
i FOR THE SAKE OF THE CHILDREN... 4

ARE YOU ALL
RIGHT, ELIZA? YOU |

Y 1T 15 ONLY

SHALL SsOON
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i Dear Kebecca,
I sincerely hope that you
and our babies are well and
thriving despite my absénce.
My big news is — at jast
we have seen some

=)

all) York miitia Camp, G
Late Avgust T

i

in a small Fleet of boafs...

, A

action? ) 5\
\ ] 1= -
/ Y "_-_.-ﬁl Ty T .l -. .
General Brock himself took handreds of BN 1 confess I am no sailol; A
men — tTroops and Militia — vp Lake Erie N and when The siorm struck

O 7 must admit fo spending N\
N time on my knees, refching... 1§

iR

The general’s boat was ariven
aground on some rocks. Brock
himself in Full military dress

and regalia, stepped overboard K
1o help hie crew refloar he :

g =%

When we finally landed, the general § A
broke out hi¢ personal supply of s
5 ; RAL
spirite and gave every manjack 186, 2 ; g‘g};%ﬁﬁﬁ TEH HIM TOS
of us a arink... LEAD U8, WE m;dul.
: P | HELL ITSEL E

D FIGHT IN
Fl
1,1 o




What followed was The hardest work I have )i
.2 _‘1‘ . ever done, as we halléd and manoeuvred
EAS OUP £3NNON 11D POSITION... LT
) [ =) =

/ \%I/,, l!&? 7

il

our target was Fort Cetfroi;
where the American General
HUll and hie forces were
ensconced. We did some [
damage fo their
Ffortifications but

there were foo few

of Ws fo lay siege...

Wi 27
| T waz wondering if the entire action
was merely a futile gesture when the
Shawnee war chief Tecumseh and his
Indian braves joined Us... 3

L

-

There were hundreds of Them. 5’0}}:9 Wé‘f:e

dressed in buckskin, but many wore only [op

Joincloths and had applied war-pamr
fo their faces and bodies...  —er TS

N They presented a fruly terrifying ,L !
2/ sight And we are their allies, 50 )
i/ | the Good Lord alone knows what
W effect they had on The soldliers
o Within the fort! gz =1




Just seeing
Them keeps a
Wane spipite
from sinking

Brock and Tecimseh greefed
each other like old friends.
Both are 13l and powerfil }
men, and W 7 2

o -
e —

natural

feaders. ' = O
= _' ‘-
W2z no

o
A

‘f.:ly

=

\)
)
”

"

-

. SR/ 1T 18

TOO DANGEROUS
FOR YOU TO EXPOSE
YOURSELF!

Even with the Indians, our forces were vastly
outnmbered. In an attempr fo intimidate the
Americans, the general paraded his froops
JUST oUT of gunshot range...

S5 sl
- i ey PR

He macie the Miitia share uniforms with
The troopers, 50 it looked as if there

&/ e,
.((f(((((f((?(ﬁg(‘i il

1 WOULD

/" NEVER ASK MY

[ MEN TO 60 WHERE
I AM NOT WILLING

P,
TO LEAD THE.'\i\ \.

Then he had Tecumsen march his warriors past 1he fort =
three or four times. [T miust have seemed 1o them the fo, o8
. entire [ndian nation was turned out for battle... "
e T T e A A E ol e
ey ' g ok ".l‘... . ":""1'{‘!1',, l"';.,' \’f‘i;' l'-‘.'--"l ) n;' Al "
I e ;.','.,fﬂl:”’”'l LA
e G el

- S| £ Lt |

o “1 777 / /{_;_;

taier T
- / }V o : f—=_

S—




( Finally, Hull sent an emissary
PA with a white Flag of fruce...

WE REQUIRE THREE
pAYs' TRUCE TO CONSIDER
OUR POSITION! i

YOU HAVE THREE
HOURS--ELSE I WILL NOT BE
ABLE TO CONTROL THE INDIANS!

/ .

whether Brock is a genius,
or Hull is an idiet: For the
Americans surrénderéed, | PEE
and we marched in fo fake
over their Fort withoui the
loss of a single life/

Even now, I pamnot decide j

g

Along with Brocks other adventures,
most of Michigan (s now in Brifish
and Canadian hands. A miracle
Indeed’

i

1

S

\ \\\\ PN EAN
5 \ N
\‘
A 74 \\:
/ :‘\\

|

= Allmy love,
Maithew.

Now I take my leave of you, dearést wife,
with the news that our Governor, Frevosy,
s seeking a frice. If This comes fo pass, you
may be seeing me sooner than expecrted’

~

<
7
/

2

v Y\ Y



&H

| 15 DELICIOUS,

MOTHER. 4=\

; ELL B b
- GEORGE? WAS IT ===
B A SQUIRREL? 48

= -

”NO, BECCA, §

IT WAS TWO
SLIGHTLY LARGER
ANIMALS...

A
TOO E‘LOSE TO

ROTHER WHO 15 SU
I A FINE FISHERMA
¥ WILLIAM.

..ONE NAMED
PA, AND THE OTHER
MATTHEW!




GOVERNOR PREVOST 6OT
His TRUSE. THE MILITIA HAS
BEEN PISBANDED FOR AT
LEAST A MONTH!

MY HEART N7 Ut SUIRELY THE

REIQICES THAT
Tl ARE HOE AYA& S NOT OVeR

> BUTWEHAVE <
7 WALKED ALL THE WAY \)
( FROM YORK, AND WILL |
| SURELY COLLAPSE |

A\ “WITHOUT IMMEDIATE
. SUSTENANCE. _

)7 THERE WILL BE

¥ NO TALK OF WAR AND

{ DEATH WHILE WE ARE AT

TABLE, GEORGE! LET |
YOUR FATHER EAT

¥  TELL Us

/ ABOUT THE WAR, &
d PA/ HAVE YOU YET E
\ KILLEDP ANY !
B AMERICANS?

A [

EROM THE JOLIRNAL It is almost as if life has returned to )
H_e-* Bl normal, with Aaron and Matthew back
WEEL 2among us. Sitting around the hearth,

| we were a family again, complete in
ourselves,.,

AYE, THE PEOPLES "
OF THE CANAPAS ARE STARTING
TO BELIEVE MAYBE WE CAN W/N
THIS WAR,

7~ RETURNED FROM THE
CAPTURE OF FORT PETROIT:
THE PEOPLE TREATED US
) LIKE HERDES!

~ But all their stories were reminders \ I
that, even here, no-one can hide from
the realities of the world outside.




" WE EVEN HAD SOME
/  AMERICAN PESERTERS 10N
[ Us. IT SEEME THEIR MILITIA IS A
RELUCTANT TO FIGHT US AS WE
ARE TO FIGHT THEM,

BUT THEY
BORE BAD NEWES,
TOO, THE WORPD 15, A
HUGE ARMY--E/GHT

MORE/--15 GATHERING
ON THE AMERICAN SIDE
OF THE NIAGARA

THOUSANP MEN, OR

AFTER ALL, WE HAVE

BEEN NEIGHBOURS LIVING IN PEACE Nms
FOR DECADES. THE BORDER THAT
\  DIVIDES WS IS ONLY A LINE i

ON A MAP.

7 WILLIAM--YOU TAKE NO N
S PART IN OUR CONVERSATION. |

ARE YOU WELL, SON?

) ;
I/ " NEVER BETTER,

/ /” FATHER. T AM MERELY
[ MARKING THE OCCASION

\JN THE WAY I KNOW BEST...

ONE OF Us |5
YET ABSENT--MY PIERRE.
IF ONLY HE WERE HERE, MY
HAPPINESS WOULD BE
OVERWHELMING!

YOU HEARD FROM
HIM AT ALL, MY
PEAR?

18I

s S

i




NAUGHT BUT THE MEREST \
- SCRIBBLED NOTE, HE HAS ARRIVED
2\ IN MONTREAL, AND WAS ACCEPTED
a FOR DUTY BY HIS OLD
REGIMENT.

I PRAY THE DAY
COMES WHEN FIERRE TOO
RETURNS TO US...AND WILLIAM
CAN MAKE HIS PICTURE
COMPLETE!




e —

WHAT IS THAT
PREADFUL NOISE? IT
1S WORSE THAN LAST

NIGHT'S THUNDER-

I NO MAN WHO HAS (e
FOUGHT IN BATTLE COULD

MISTAKE |, MOTHER. IT SN DY A CANNON? .
) |5 THE SOUND OF 4SS S/ HERE? BUT.. )
" CANNON. & 5 WHY?
: il
b S\\ '

. ‘ /! .. |,I|"ﬂ‘\|!\f ;,“

—

B “‘ : AMEE[E I :

: \‘.r S B AL SHELNG = HURRY, FATHER, i
S X D\ GUEENSTON! FOR WE WILL BE SORE
” \ NEEDED.
. - y :." . s ade.
2 o ": VWeas
e,

RN |

| YSY s i

S

LI}



THE NIAGARA RIVER BETWEEN
LAKES ERIE AND ONTARIO
WAS IMPASSABLE TO BOATSE
BECAUSE OF THE MIGHTY
NIAGARA FALLS.

SN e W13 1

RUEENSTON HAL SPRUNG P As A STAGING POST, ||
WHERE BOATE COULP BE UNLOAPED ANP THEIR CARGO
CARRIED ROUND THE FALLS BY CART ANP HORSE.

o \l

—?ﬂ-

—=T—-f—' = 1 ) ? o ik
Ll Ty : I
AARON AND = el
who 60z T L ATTHEW LOXLEx, ) S >
THERE? TN THE CANADAS. ' /
3 \ 4
' LT
i I R L - :
11 = o !
n——— > 2 s (] i - :o J
off T et oo X |
.LI" ooy S = %




- : % % T
L ‘6 v 0 o / MADNESS! Why {
e ' ‘v, ( DO THEY ATTACK AN ) |

e = [ » UNDEFEN%ED 1

. D @ VILLAGE? _~ g
: ! :.'E. e ;i B [If
; - L 1 i

\

> THE AMERICANS HAVE NOW Huﬂpnsps\ A

" CAPTURED THE HEIGHTS ABOVE T \( OF THEM ARE CROSSING JISASa iV Z -3—',:=“- ‘I
\ US, THE CANNON REDOUBT IS IN K o .. "3 THE RIVER IN BOATS, GENERAL B L5, e |
THEIR HANDS, £ Aoisie il RS RS BROCK IS ON HiS WG| ||}

W WAY--BUT I FEAR JESRE
i\ HE MAY 8E TOO A © 4

: ~~ WE CANNOT Y i .y - ’ ’ _r'! .'-_.' 1 ; . ___" 1 7 Ay |
® ( HOPE TO DOUSE { el 2 -‘ i

THESE FLAMES!
» s




YOUR Way TO
THE LOXLEY HOME. ¥
IT I8 A FEW MILES

DISTANT, BUT YOU /S
WILL BE SAFE e
THERE. o
2N

</

" MY BABY! HE - X [ MURDERING 108

S WAS HIT BY A PIECE } A, - !
A\ OF SHRAPNEL, 44 . ﬁ A . SWINE! g
B Y 17 ¥ 1SWEAR, N
T e : [ vou WILL SUFFER IS
# af : ! v/ A\ \ Il 1Y

b FOR THIS!

S VT,

GENERAL
BROCK, SIR! THE
ENEMY HAS SEIZED

THE HEIGHTS,




. __‘i_ \ __“ e P : = >
Uy, | 4 -. L A __'4_.\‘- -~._°

it ; NEVER? @)
SITUATION I8 W S i B
PIRE, SIR! WE-- E MUST RE-TAKE J)7 90
WE MAY HAVE TO J 5o
\. SURRENDER, AS({ £ Al

- Fo
GENERAL BROCK AND )
THE CANADAS!

g
g

=7 .‘lfﬂ hﬁ*.@‘ J
e s

YOu <k
ARE WOUNDED,




FORTUNATELY, =
[ THE GOOD LORD sAW T = f—

FIT TO GIVE ME TWO =
1 __—,'-—-—-—-——-—d__i-

A ] 1sUEAD. THE
A [~ GENERAL 15 LN
WSS DEAD! il




? THEN
S WHY WAIT?

/ GENERAL WOULD

NOT WANT Us TO
DESPAIR. THEY
HAVE SLAIN OUR

MAKE THEM \.-§

B 70 THE |
S\ A77ACK! ]

AYE, FATHER.
ONLY TODAY I HAVE
REALISED THE TRUE
HORROR OF

ARE YOU ALL

THE INVAPERS WERE PRIVEN BACK BY
THE SHEER FEROCITY OF THE CANAPIAN
ATTACK, MANY FELL TO THEIR PEATHS
FROM THE PERILOLS CRAGS.

ALMOET 1,000 U. 5.
FRISONERS WERE
TAKEN.

/'h
7
--THAT THE g

/ NOBLEST GENERAL,

AND THE MOST INNOCENT
EABE-/IN-ARM S, CAN BE
TAKEN ON A WHIM OF FATE...

AS IF THEIR LIVES MEANT /
LESS THAN NOTHING,




o . -
& L 4 ¥
Sy
) !

Al . ' ! A%
o S »
! [ - S ol T \ 1
M *r‘ %" ‘.'“‘:—.aﬂ W\
i 2 (! ! g Q.J\ Yl
Sl ) i!:}ﬁ;k'?a!:\mah.

P ccNERAL BROCKS COFFIN WAS B IR
SUMN caccizr FRoM NEWARK 7O ((ARHW 8
M\ FORT GEORGE, FOLLOWED <
NS0 87 7HAT OF His TRUSTED AIDE,

ARRRY | MacoONELL, THOUSANDS OF

\

Ao ' CITIZENS LINED THE ROUTE,
3 '-\ ?"I'
RN

B

OFFERING THEIR GRATITUPE

1 it 1A
RS
wh IR ANP PRAYERS,

BROCK GAVE THE CANADAS

HIs COURAGE, HIS

LOYALTY, AND ULTIMATELY
His LIFE.




FPERHARS MOST
IMPORTANTLY, HE
GAVE CANADIANS
| CONFIPENCE
IN THEMSELVES AND
THEIR ABILITIES.

e
s

IT WAS THE FUNERAL
OF A GENERAL...AND
THE BIRTH OF A LEGENP.




AFTER THE DEATH
OF GENERAL BROCK,
THINGS BECAME
WORSE FOR THE
PEOPLE OF UPPER
CANADA, BANDS
OF RENEGAPE
U. 5. SOLDIERS
ROAMED THE
NIAGARA
PENI/NSLULA,
TAKING APVANTAGE
OF THE FACT THAT
THE FARMERS HAD
BEEN RECALLED
7O THEIR
MILITIA UNITS,

X~ READY OR
7 --NINETY- V' 0T, GEORGE, WE'RE

/(“#LTE&&%BF COMING TO FIND
' you!

~ COME ON,

WHERE |15 HE

'DUKE, OLD 80Y!
HIDING? TRACK /8
HIM

0T YOU,
BROTHER/

7 NOT FAIR!

PUKE |18 NOT
SUPPOSED TO
HELP YO

I

v = :

i

\\\\\\\“g\" A :

=

TN

——

'&;‘ _— ' —




/" WH-WHAT

[

\DD YOU WANT

7 -.1 WANT
{ THAT CUR TO

= MA [
MAZS AMERICANS
\ HAVE SHOT OLD

THIS IS
PRIVATE PROPERTY. I
\ ADVISE YOU TO LEAYVE
RS AT ONCE!




' TEACH THE
SIMPLETON
»

g

LEAVE HIM

W ALONE! HE HAS HAD

(SN cONSUMPTION! He

N\ 15 NOT WELL ENOLIGH (-’
TO FIGHT, - -

L fAl "

YOU TAKE HIS PLACE,
OLD HAG? _~




i =
e
‘:'. T T3 R
T 3
;

BT P
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= e s
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L by e

STRIP THE
HOUSE! TAKE ANYTHING = ANY WHO TRY TO
WORTH LOOTING.

sl v, .

. ol L

AND K/LL ! ’

&, STOP YOU. o

||
|}

‘ ;.4 1}
WE CANNOT

ALLOW THEM TO DO
THIS, MA!

3 $
255 HugH,

¢ GEORGE. WE
il HAVE NO MEANS

2\ OF STOPPING 4
- THEM.

7 TAKING OUR WINTER
| SUPPLIES! WOULD YOU

STARVATION 2
'ﬂ; /_“‘ﬁ‘/

SEE s PERISH BY

THEIR HORSES ARE ow\
AND USELESS. THE CHICKENS
ESCAPED--EXCEPT FOR THESE

CANAD/IAN. WE
DO NOT CARE HOW
YOU PERISH. g4




IT 1€ NOT
/ YOUR FAULT, WILLIAM,
MOTHER. I | EVIL MEN LIKE THESE

'
GRAND-
'/ MOTHER! ARE YOU
: ALL RIGHTZ -
4 & \\/

N

7 O




FROM THE JOURNAL
OF ALURORA LOXLEY,
OCTOBER 30, 1812,

= /R .- " A\Vz

It grieves my heart fo write that | — —~———u
Aurora Loxley passed away today, |
without regaining consciousness. |\

A =
_ S
This cursed war, that has taken our L } a

?;‘ =3 ]

menfolk from us, Ras claimed its , Se———>
A First victim from our family. - ~

" After much thought, T §
have decided that I, €
Eliza, daughter-in-law
® of Aurora, will continue
" {o keep her journal, as

she would surely have =
wished me to.

We have today suffered a multiple |
tragedy. Our winter store of flour,
and salt, and apples has been stolen
from us. Truth to tell, I do not
know how we will survive. =1

Even our old hound is dead. \o

9L Verity ic beside herself with _
L L grief, while William blames —)
7 3 everything on himself. :
To compound our misery, -
George has gone missing. W

When I set to ° ;
locking for him,
I found a letter...

1

i Reading it has broken
my heart all over again. *
And yet, with Aaron and
Matthew gone, I am

§ leader of this
family now. _g

For the sake F
ug all, I must be




T/ AN W
e “\‘t—w W 5\
B Decr Aa, N1 e N[ E

l Nl I am so sorhy for doing this, k AN

but I can see no other way oA e B
forwahd. T he Amebicans have IS
killed my beloved grandmother, S S
and shot my faithful dog. I must [t
find some wdy 1o hit back g+ 28

| them. So I have left home, /2
and will seek outr Pg and A
, Marthew ot their barracks A
gl in York. g L

R P

i !\i E% '_‘ |
35 .«éa ' h’{:‘_?;- l | |

R
K

Do not worry gbout me— ! & Your loving son, [
I will keep off the ttacks,
and bemdin hidden from any ek

renegades. Please

fohgive me. :‘,{F 7))
Bl Y/ WiLL PROVE

e e S B AN EASIER I

\ ME TO CLIMB |

. A TR 2 od |~
f3a Ol e Y |
%‘%‘%ﬂ"ﬁ?‘(‘:?\rﬁ ¥ M\k&\\\\






A
A erem——

RSl T CANNOT PLULL
A WYSELF WPl 7

pO NOT 6O/ 1 7
CANNOT HOLD &

7




NO--THEY WERE AMERICANS! §
THEY ARE MY ENEMY, TOO. I AM
ON MY WAY TO SEEK MY FATHER 4

AND BROTHER IN THE MILITIA _43
AT YORK, o

I
" AM HEADED FOR
YORK, I 60 TO JOIN
TECUMSEH.

| P THANK YOU,
| ( My ERIEND. ¥/

B 1 cHOuLD NOT
{ HAVE BOTHERED,
IT WAS WHITES LIKE
"W YOU WHO KILLED

W FATHER AT / ||
TiPPECANOE. |

= DARK sOON, WE
N7 MUST EAT.
1
' f
3

7~ 1T WILL BE




b2
ES

[ AMERICA MAK
| WAR WITH TH
A CANADAS?

310) B Tl

VITH SOMETHING CALLED
IMPRESSMENT, 1 THINK. &
WHY ARE THEY AT WAR &
WITH THE INDIANS?

> “EBES.A&;_'»E GT HE THEY GET
Y AMERICANS'
o aAD el W OUR CHIEFS DRUNK
B SATED. NO MATTER How . ON WHISKY, THEN CLAIM
_ TO HAVE BOUGHT THE
_LAND FROM THEM

BUT TECUMSEH
SAID, “SELL A COUNTRY?
WHY NOT SELL THE AIR--THE

CLOUDS--THE GREAT SEA AS
WELL AS THE EARTH?Z PIP NOT THE
GREAT SPIRIT MAKE THEM

ALL FOR THE USE OF His

CHILDRENZ”

y .. FERHAPS IF YOUR SKILL 4 ) , -
WE COULD TRAVEL IN CROSSING RAVINES E , - o | B

TOGETHER? N 1S ANYTHING TO GO BY, o . . WILL START
IT WILL BE BETTER FOR | l W\ e AT EIRST )
; YOU IF WE DO! Ax I . B LIGHT. 4

B GEE AR -]

=

e X

—

_fr




* B 2 N

' Dearest Rebecca,

¥ ‘&

_ Matthew

York Militia Camp, November, 1812 "

Something happened foaay which will make
YoU—and perhaps one day our davwghiers —
provd of me. In an attempt fo contain the
lawless U.5. penegades, Lf. James Fitzgibbon
& h1as handpicked and framed a special force
P fo combat them. They are called the Green
Tigers...and I have been sefected fo be one |
of thelr number! Your loving husband,

CUT HIM
DOWN/
SOME OF
YOU OTHERS--
PUT OUT THOSE

FLAMES.

youz

OUR SUPPLIES,
AND SET FIRE TO THE
HOUSE. THEY SAID IT
WOULD BE A LESSON

FOR OTHERS NOT

THIS EVIL UPO d

A-AMERICANS/
I WHEN MY HUSBAND

TRIED TO STAND UP TO
THEM, THEY BEAT HIM
FIERCELY, AND THEN--

THEN--

AV8 NDREW--

WY DAVID. SALVAGE WHAT 2
I’ YOU CAN FROM THE HOUSE |
B\ AND AFTERWARD DELIVER )
pi.*‘_ THESE PEOPLE TO THEIR

NEIGHBOURS.

\2




THE REST OF
V' YOU--WITH ME, THESE
| MURPERERS CANNOT

TRACKS SHOW THEY
HAVE A CART TO

/ LIEUTENANT--1 KNOW THIS

AREA. THERE |5 A WIDE BOG

AHEAD--IT WILL SURELY SLOW /

THE OUTLAWS IN THEIR :
FLIGHT,
v IS THERE A N
/ ‘iW!FTER ROUTE, THA
WE MIGHT HHT TH

THEN SHOW US |T--

[ AND BY THE GRACE OF 60D,

WE WILL AVENGE THIS /
ATROCITY!

P el el

CLINTON, WE HAVE
MUCH TO SELL ONCE
WE REGAIN OUR SIDE
OF THE BORDER. AND

THOUGH THE BOG |

WILL PREVENT AN\
PURSUIT, 4




P ONE LAST EFFORT

“ NOW, WE ARE ALMOST )
r\ ACROSS,
) i

’;. :“' "A‘
, Ry ;
€5 £| A

AYE. THOUGH THOSE
WHO KNOW US HAVE B
CREATED A PIFFERENT

NAME,

7 NOW THEY
CALL Us THE
8Loopey
BOYs.

~ THERE ARE
| POSSESSIONS
BELONGING TO
A HALF-DOZEN
FAMILIES )
HEFZE gIR! .~

/7 WE HAVE DONE MAYHAP--BUT ONLY
NO WRONG. IT 1S A \/ IF HE DEFEATS HIS FOES
TIME OF WAR. A MAN | IN COMBAT. YOU SCUM HAVE
18 ENTITLED TO \ KILLED THE INNOCENT,
WHATEVER BOOTY /\ AND SPREAD TERROR
HE CAN TAKE! AMONG DECENT

YOU ARE OUTLAWS,
NOT SOLPIERS. YOU WILL
DIE AS SUCH.

THEN WE ARE PRISONERS
OF WAR, TAKE US TO YOUR
FORT AND LOCK Us
UP THERE,




7 8Loopy
BOYS--TAKE

- AlM,
-
.

B JOU CANNOT
i 0O THIS! IT I - A
ZAN M’””-‘"A”-A& ; LAST YOU WILL
: il  Zp° =5 KNOW HOW YOUR B
VICTIMS MIST 4

N
pp— T,
- J

—

$ SR/ THERE % > -
; ! ; ~ AND THESE <Ol
¥ _ 15 PLUNDER HERE DRAWINGS WERE \irH

MADE BY My  JHH
B T//ESE SLANKETS \ YOUNGER BROTHER

” o MY GRAND - }
MOTHER!




> THESE
% BRUTES MUST
/! HAVE RAIDED MY a2
| HOME, TOO. IT 15 |
ONLY THIRTY MILES
OR S0 FROM
HERE. -

¥ Y
. : [ RECOGNISE AS
| { YOLRS, MATTHEW, |
’,' .- ORIl AND RETURN IT

!III o~ /17
A4}

) TO YOUR FAMILY. |

i . - A o I\ il \
h 1/ 1 - | b 8 A IR
g T A%
i B o d = ¥
i x’:};z! ‘//t’/‘t‘! e { k z )
Inif: A ; !‘l $ > | i":;'--l i
I-’l i “‘
4 /“ kS - A\
2 A\ T 8 & 2 I BNy B R
5 7 A ¥ )

W NO, TAKE THEIR " UM B
/ HORSES, AND THE CART. \ “HELE

BUT LEAVE THE CORPSES | BB [}
hjon THE WOLVES AND £ NE '
W BUZZARDS,

ITIS
NO MORE
THAN THEY

DESERVE.




O & AMERICAN

HORRIBLE/

WHO..WHO
WERE

- DISHEARTEN OTHERS WHO
%) THEYZ

WAR ON Us, “

8 OUTLAWS, LEFT LIKE N
Y THIS BY MY PEOPLE--TO

MIGHT THINK OF MAKING &%

Y TRUTH ;
S8 10 TELL, THEY
PISHEARTEN ME

AS WELL.

" 1AM N

V' suRre cop-
YOUR GREAT

SPIRIT--DID NOT

MAKE HUMANS
80 WE COULD
COMMIT SUCH

/" BEYOND YOUR YEARS, MY
FRIEND. BUT AS THE GREAT p——

YOU ARE WISE

TECUMSEH HIMSELF e

" MIGHT SAY-- RN YOlR i

a FOE ATTACKS, WHAT :
§l ELSE CAN YOU DO BUT Jasial
. FIGHT BACK?

s

%@1‘:

T IR




e ~
——— -~ PARDON ;
: [ My am /1 JE COME
WILL WE 8E IN PEACE. THEY
/ QILL RECEIVE US
; \

=S\ 7
sl IN PEACE, _(flj S ‘ﬁ 'i'ﬂg ") / /LA

e
. ad

Y~ THE SKY |5 CLEAR, THE
[ NORTH WIND |$ CHILL. THEY

SAY THIS MEANS A HARD
WINTER WILL COME.

THE WOMEN
AND CHILPREN GO TO
THE FORT AT NIAGARA. THE
BRITISH WILL HELP THEM 4
WITH FOOP.

VTHe PALENESS |
OF YOUR SKIN. THEY ¥
ASK IF IT DOES NOT ||
REFLECT THE SUNSHINE, &

> THE NEWS 15 NOT SO
GOOD. WHILE WE HAVE BEEN Y
HEADED NORTH AND EAST, |

TECUMSEH HAS GONE 4
SOUTH.

HE SEEKS TO
CONVINCE THE TRIBES
THERE TO JO/N HIS FIGHT
AGAINST AMERICA.




/ AND WHAT
OF WS? WE
WANTED TO

N
M

Al

i

~" THERE WILL
/" BE FEW BATTLES IN
{ WINTER, MEN NEED THE

SUN TO WARM THEIR

BLOOD BEFORE THEY 4 : DULIRER O
SPILL IT/ ) W
S ¥
" PERHAPS YOU X i

SHMOULD RETURN TO
& YOUR FAMILY..? 4

2

SNy 7 ‘

.....____\_ / 7
P AND TELL /
THEM I RAN AWAY, / vy
ONLY TO RETURN A >~ N

R

THEN WE
WILL JOIN MY PEOPLE
AT THEIR WINTER CAMP,
AND WAIT FOR THE

== QY “FAREWELL, MAY
=/ AND ¥ WE MEET AGAIN.”
=/ WHAT DO

THOSE

AND THEY CALL
YOU BY YOUR NEW
INDIAN NAME--

-=LITTLE
PALE-FACE .




YOUR /" DID NO ONE THINK
GRANDMOTHER \ / TO CALL FOR HENRY
NEVER REGAINED BOSCOE, AT TEN-MILE

CONSCIOUSNESS, CREEK? HE HAS SOME
MATTHEW, BUT DIED MEDICAL TRAINING.
THAT VERY

WILLIAM TRIED TO
PROTECT U, BUT THEY
BEAT HIM..,

WILLIAM WENT
THERE. BUT BOSCOE |5
AT WAR, SERVING IN A FIELD
HOSPITAL. HE HAD NO
CHOICE--

--FOR YOU
CAN BE EXECUTED
IF YOU PISOBEY THE

DRAFTT./

IWILL
WEAR THE SCAR
AS A BADGE OF
HONOUR,
BROTHER.

-

—

T

1 BROUGHT

y "BACK ALL THAT I
COULD CARRY. MY

WAGES FROM THE
MILITIA ARE MEAGRE,
8UT THEY WILL HELP
PROVIDE ENOUGH
TO SEE YOU
THROUGH THE
WlNTER

H?n”' '
\1 m’n‘un h:q




TARARRRN

PEAP MEN
WALKING?

2
QX
A.....-_
us
oy

4

d




7 HUSH, MATTHEW.
YOU WERE HAVING A )
NIGHTMARE...

SORRY, 'BECCA.
THIS PAMNED WAR
MAKES ME FEEL LIKE

I INHABIT TWO

WORLDS.

WHEN
I AM AWAY,
I DREAM OF
YOU AND OUR
CHILDREN--

--BUT WHEN
I AM HERE, MY
DREAMS ARE OF

WAR.

Saam—

SOMETHING 00D--LIKE OLR THE SHADOWE 1N OUR
BABFIE,SEER ‘?xﬁENEA“pF}L“ A MINDS ARE THE WORST
LAND, ' OF ALL TO BEAR..,

5"“'"’“’“.'

[ P———
L=




| NEITHER SIPE HADZ A MONOFOLY
1 ON ATROCZITIES. ON JANUARY 19,
1813, LT. COLONEL FROCTOR ANP
HIS ARMY CROSSED THE FROZEN |
PETROIT RIVER. \ ' ‘f

S
NN

/f

W
AN
AN

7 AN
WITH THE AlP OF WYANPOT
CHIEF ROUNPHEAP
ANP HIE WARRIORS, THEY
ATTACKED RIVER RAISIN AND
WON IT BACK FROM THE

H;

500 PRISONERS WERE -
TAKEN, AND LEFT IN THE [
| CARE OF THE INDIANS,
!
)

FOR THE REST OF THE WAR,

U.5. TROOFPS WOULD RALLY

7O THE BATTLE-CALL:

YREMEMEER RIVER
RAISY

SINS




| Montreal, Almost Spring, 1813 "-|
Ellen, ma chére femme—

PEE-— The long winfer is nearly ovenr, and \

my heart pines for you more each day.

It seems the Americans thought that
the French-Canadians would rise up
and join them in their fight against

England. But as is often the way of it,
we French acted totally contrary
to expectations.

7o e
S i

—_—

Iﬂf”ﬂ

f’w

I“ Ve L ==

Wil
uulﬂiml d |

I have been placed under the command \

of Lt. Col. Charles-Michel d’lrumberry de
Salaberry, a remarkable name for a most
remarkable man. I have trained with his
special forces unit, the Voltigeurs.

C—— e




=

A

Along with a defachment of Mohawks, we were \
sent fo La Colle on the Richelieu River, charged ¢
with guarding access fo the 5t. Lawrence, Oup

' spies are everywhere, and gave us warning of

i~ the LI.S. advance. .

We beat them decisively. I hope it ¢
will be a long time before they try _‘
" again fo invade Lower Canada.

If Montreal falls, the supply \.,_,
lines from the Atlantic will be
severed. But the Colonel has
promised us leave whehever
the pressure eases. Avec

fout mon amour, foujours.

i
,j' i IR AN

Bl anayeme—;
1
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FROM THE JOLIRNAL |
OF AURORA LOXLEY, | X &
LATE JUNE, 1813. S

=77

3

The news has mostly been bad of late, though we rejoiced
when a brief note arrived from George to say ke is in rude

—_— ——ram

| Despite the official !

= capitulation, soldiers
| |ooted and burned the

1 among his troops. B
fown, leaving our = - \ ’
Parliament in .’ A y ¢ _

Flames. ’ % 4

| The U.5. commander, General Dearborn,
apparently does not inspire obedience

When the tfown

magazine exploded,
scores of troops

from both sides were |8
instantly killed, and _&¢
hundreds were
wounded. o




| Laura’s husband James was badly hurt
in the Battle of Queenston. I will never
forget her description of wandering the
battlefield in search of him, her senses
assaullted by the smell of gunpowder 4
’3 5 and blood, and the screams of
2 wounded and dying men. ‘I-

-

i“: Some days ago, Ellen and I went
L Tovisit our old friend, Lavra
Secord, who lives in Queenston...

The image il
sends shivers
down my

¥ HOW DOES > HE |5 CONFINED TO
JAMES EARE NOW, ) [ BED. HIS SHOULDER HAS HEALED,
LAURAT BUT A MUSKET BALL 15 STILL
LOPGEPD IN HIS KNEE. \ ‘

AR Y "’j

We had been there for some
hours, passing time in a most
agreeable fashion, when ’f[.{f
there was a sudden 7 /
commotion... \i{ H
7

2 ﬂ.‘%ﬁh e .

auE | n
1 o
A\

I\

WILL DEMAND FOOD. BETTER
THAT YOU LEAVE, ELIZA, ELSE |
THEY MAKE YOUR HOME

s g
+ W .
i i .'II
'|II

ﬁl—’
= “ | 1

0

W \4 :

\ "\l LRl IF EXPERIENCE
1l M B 15 ANY TEACHER, THEY
' | Wi BNl W

THE NEXT TO VISIT. '




AR ‘“li
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*.‘ju,g

‘,\ happened. ==

C 27 e - >

pl= : ¢

A 4]
PUT EVERYTHING WE g
HAVE ON THE TABLE, FAN,
BECAUSE WE CANNOT I
- RESIST THEM. !

It was many days

afterward that \
Laura told me of
what subsequently

”

. i
i
‘ b

M

w7 a7

It was not long before the intruders
were deep in their cups...

: ARK MY l /

WORDS--THIS WILL $7
BE THE ENP FOR ACCURSED BLOOPY

FITZGIBBON/!

THEY THINK THEY ARE SECURE

AT DeCEW'S HOME AT BEAVER
PAMS, RIPING OUT TO ATTACK
Us AT WILL.

THOSE

BOYS WILL SOON HAVE
THEIR OWN BLOOD /
SPILLED.

CYRENUS CHAPIN WILL
GIVE THEM MORE THAN THEY
. EVER BARGAINED FOR!

T v o T Laura‘s blood ran cold at their

BLOOD 20V3s! drunken boasts. For she knew §
that my Matthew rode with the
Tigers--and also that defeat
for FitzGibbon would be eyt
1 B calamitous for all He
the Canadas! 4

1
Y

Ty
T
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S HH
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ITI8 TWENTY
ON BEAVER DAMS? \ ,-ﬁ;ms OR MORE, JAMES,

I MUST GO TO WARN A [ AND YOU CAN BARELY WALK. /
THEM...! < NO, I WILL GO,

‘ | -~ AN ASSAULT
| |

: ||| \ i \' | ) ~ \ B \\

AR e R R At

e
S

From there, she advanced
alone. The day was hot and
exceptionally humid—

ﬁe 22 Her niece Elizabeth
% Laura set out or: walked with her as

" her momentouis - = : far as Shipman’s
Jjourney. = S Corners.

-Ear'fv on Ju

—and r route fook her B
over rigged terrain.

WHAT
WOULD I GIVE
TO LIE POWN AND J
SLEEP.,

o

L T -

A




BUT THE
GREEN TIGERS
WOLULD SCARCE
THAI\:#’HME FOR

Just when she thought
she must faint with
exhaustion...

I HAVE NEWS OF
THE GREATEST IMPORT FOR

CAPTAIN FITZGIBBON, PLEASE--

TAKE ME TO’HIM AT

N
BUT ARE THEY
ON OUR SIDE--OR THE
AMERICANS? THERE |5
ONLY ONE WAY I WILL
FIND OUT.,




FitzGibbon was astonished to see
the frail, disheveled figure--

F --but he acted on he//
Z,
i news at once. 7 ; /

[
// =~ AWAKEN THE

MEN, SHORE UP OUR

PEFENCES--AND SEND FOR /
N\ REINFORCEMENTS /
2 AT ONCE! 777
7/ .

Y/ /S e ||

W 11N saTTLE CAME, IT WAS NATIVE INCIANS WHO LEP
THE ATTACK, AS MANY A5 A HUNDRED AMERICANS PIEP
SHRRENPEREL.

I llﬁ

[ e

2l A2 INDIAN LEADER JOHN
NORTON LATER REMARKED,
“THE COGNAWAGA ,
INDIANS FOUGHT THE BATTLE,
THE MOHAWKS GOT THE
PLUNDER, ANZ FITZ@/8E80N
BOT THE CREDIT.”

IT WOULD BE MANY YEARS BEFORE
LAURA SECORPS FART IN THE
VICTORY WAS ACCEPTED, AND
EVEN LONGER BEFORE SHE WAS
REWARPZED FOR HER UNFLINCHING
BRAVERY.
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My Dearest Ma and Pq,
I have started lerters o you on Q dozen
occ.gsions, bur edch fime have lgid down my

8 How can I possibly gpologise

_ ﬂ. for the pQin dnd wohty my : % I have been learning the ways of”

B thoughtiess depahfure A Y Firebrand’s people, and have

B rust have caused you? JENEEEEEEE become passing fair ot using both
: o ' musket and tomahawk. Soon, I

hope, I will get the chance I crave

o qvenge my grandmother’s decth.

-

AR o e

A week oF so 9go, we watched batHeships fighting on Lake ’ ¢
Erie. T he Brifish may indeed “rule the waves,” as they sy, but
on +his occasion they got their +ails sorely kicked.

T




Chief Tecumseh was quartered in fobt |
Amherstberg, but his superior, Proctor,
l-qs now obdered g Fettegt.

T mmw

1
L. Y

My friend Lirerand says it means
all of the Michigan +ehritory won
by General Brock last year is 1o
be gbandoned.

Firerand curses the
British, for he says
theit betteat medns
+he Indians’dream of
d Native [edelrdtion
is now all but lost.

g I have given +his letter o o
ﬁ“dppef" we encountered, and

llu /n‘

W //mﬁ

Gwe my love 1o gll the
“ family, and +ell them 1
prdy they do not think
» 100 badly of me.
& Jour loving son,
. Geohge wm’:‘“'”
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W[ From T1E TOURNAL L
W oF ALRORA LOXLEY,

W ocro8ER 30, 1815, _:
-~ - Y3 |

A bright sun is shining
in the clearest blue skies,
yet the chill of winter is
already nipping at the
gate. News of the war

= E=E
' They say a 10,000-strong

=1 e

&

' TG .
" RN eIl

_ army is preparing an assault
on Montreal. They say 1,500
New York Militiamen refused
1o cross our border, as they
will not Fight on foreign soil.

r;rrufi%w w n

All our menfolk
are still away,

William. I miss-—-

2 DREAMING? OR
_DELRIOUS? ¢

P OH EON,
[ SON! MY HEART

EORG
| CAN THAT R
E YOU? URSTS TO HOLD




It was our ? .OKYS?'I'%{RON

: A § - G
2300"?51* VzaX : : AND FIT, LITTLE
; g\lree;?ce . - _ ) " BROTHER.

AND YET..
1 SEE GREAT
SORROW IN
YOUR EYES. 4

I
7] SeEmRSR

( DO NOT CRY.
YOU ARE HOME

NOW.,

TOWN. THE TROOPS WERE
A\ HUNGRY, AND AMMUNITION

WAS LOW.

W MANY OF
Y TECUMSEH'S WARRIORS
SN HAD ABANDONED HIM, BELIEVING
A OUR FORCES WERE DESTINED

e U A 5 [ |

“FIREBRAND AND I WERE EAGER TO

SEE OUR FIRST ACTION. WITHOUT

ASKING, WE JOINED TECUMSEH'S

WARRIORS WHERE THEY WAITED
BY A SWAMR.,




ALY

Y REMEMBER
W\ 21VER RAISIN! @

%*}H
XK.

¥ ABANDON N

OUR
([ THEM. ADVANCE

W HORSES CANNOT
| "2ROZS THIS

s W)

“THREE THOUSAND MEN, AGAINST OUR .’
l THOUSAND. MY LEGS WOULD SCARCE HOLD ’

ME AS THE KENTUCKY MILITIA CHARGED!"

“THE AIR WAS THICK WITH MUSKET SMOKE, ) CUT
AND FOR A BRIEF, GLORIOUS MOMENT I THEM DOWN, MY
THOUWGHT WE WOULD BE VICTORS...” WARRIORS!

(A |
L _ |
i 1/ b ¢
o ||
- | S AA R 2N il
“ . BUT THE BRITISH “--AND WE WERE LEFT ALONE TO FACE |
LINE BROKE, AND THE THE MIGHT OF HARRISON’s ARMY.” |
SOLDIERS FLED-- - — - f
il
i
[
| I|
|
I
i
“1




5 2 Ty - = \ b '\I II I 77 f
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b “WE THOUIGHT WE WOULLD BE SAFER |F

8l WE COULD GET CLOSE TO TECUMSEEH,
8 BUT JUST AS WE REACHED HIM--"

“FIREBRAND
SCREAMED,
AND RUSHED
HEADLONG AT
THE FOE!"

¥ FIREBRAND/ 1 NSRRN 1 6O, WITH My

JELE- SR Vi / CHIEF..TO J0IN THE GREAT VUSRI

SPIRIT. I--1 AM GLAD 1

: il KNEW YOU... SLITTLE
FRIEND, MY,.TIME N ) g O
HAS COME. m
= - - \

PALE-FACE..




~“AND THEN /“ALL OF MY
/ . o THERE, MY PARLING
HE WAS DPEAD, TRAINING WA S ’ ;
e ouns | N SON. LET YOUR TEARS FLOW.
RV o biogadiigintfl FAMILY 15 AROUND YOU, _~
A AN AND =

A A il
2 :_év‘

LK

what war
does,

It takes men, and women, and
children, and rips them apart,
playthings of a malevolent Fate.
And yet, for the sake of the
others, I must stay strong.

o My tears fall in the wee, small
' hours, when no-one is around
| to bear witness.




_— \ . [:llemchrn;?'nfhof;I Amer-icac!ln
] o~ slaves who had escape
December, 1813 | 2 to the Canadas... i

My dearest Eliza,

4 A\
Prepare for a shock.I am \
afraid this missive contains
come very bad news, not
only about the war but also
about my own personal
circumstances.

My Militia unit had been
placed under the command
of that well-known soldier,
William Hamilton Merritt.

S / s

=TT
e

We ambush'ed a party of enemy
soldiers close to 40-mile Creek.

4
S Ll

On this occasion,
Fortune was not
with me... \

! A
S ¢
el A/




Had it not been
for two of the

escapees, I g
might have 2

been taken

prisoner —
or, worse, [
executed
where T

fell.,

d
. >
I
elbow and shoulder of my left
arm. My saviours took me to
a British field hospital.

had been shot twice, in the

available, the surgeon
had no choice..,

+ With no medication \

I was sent to Newark fo recuperate, where an)— IR
elderly couple—John and Agnes Muirhead —
kindly took me in. =7

On the eve of the 101h, the

Hell-spawned traitor Joseph
: Willcocks and his men rode
_ info the frozen town..,
e < =

=




-y
It seemed the ‘ S —Willcocks was out SR -
Americans were NG to punish Newark. =
' FORCE =
EVERY LAST ONE

- o

abandoning the K (7 ¥ =

Peninsula. For ( iy o/ o A = : L OF THEM FROM B
ho reason 1 () 74 B THEIR HOMES!
uhderstood— - 3 X -

save his hatred T3

of the British and

their Canadian

allies— =3

As we stood there in the swipling
snow, cold and afraid, Willcocks
took a flaming torch...

. Within the hour, every house in
Newark—150 homes!—was
engulfed in flames. ;




| Terrified of further attack, many of the
women took their children and fled into
the freezing night.

When Merritt rode into the
charred ruing hext morning,
he found the bodies of a
hundred or more, frozen
to death.

So much for America being one nation under
God. For if their God sanctioned this inhuman
slaughter, then I swear to you it is not our
Chrictian Lord, but Satan himself that
they worship!

1 have dictated this letter fo Mr. Muirhead.
But as there is ho other place fo go, I have

decided 1o bear it home myself. I have seen 7 .‘

much evil during this war, but nothing fo i
\:,_/ compare with Newark. [f makes me ashamed i

1o be a human being. /Q& |

Your loving husband,

Aaron ‘ |
I



TEN DAYE LATER, FIRED BY A

FURIOUS PESIRE FOR REVENGE,
MERRITTS PRAGOONS CROSSED
THE NIAGARA RIVER...

«ANP LAID WASTE TO THE
AMERICAN FORT THERE, BUT
b A| THAT WAS ONLY THE START
A 8 OF THE REFRISALS.

h A

s
I

1.

> N, NIAGARA
WARK.-YQUN TON

Fr. GEORGE *\ |
e |

WITHIN DAY, THE ENTIRE AMERICAN
FRONTIER FROM FORT NIAGAKA

STDAVIDS
QUEENSTON

» 2 )
Z | More THAN ANy OTHER
ATROCITY, THE ZESTRUCTION
| OF NEWARK FLISED THE
P 7| ariTisH, THE MILITIA AND
THE CIVILIANS INTO ONE
O | UNITED MASE. ONLY THE
WINTER'S FIERCE COLD
V| PrEVENTED FURTHER
RECRIMINATION,

TO BUFFALO WAS PUT TO THE TORCH,

$

}

AYOA MIAN

-l




pa—

YOU CARRY
A TUNE WELL,

THANKS, PA,
COMING FROM YOU,
THAT'S A REAL
COMPLIMENT,

®

0]

=

T

o

X
i I."

#= e S0
[ WONDERFUL TO
HAVE YOU HOME,

FIERRE!

I HAVE
| MISSED YOU

CHERIE, - S




'ﬂ-r 1S JUST 87 WE MUST

LIKE OLD TIMES, Y MAKE THE MOST
MATTHEW..AS IF | OF IT, FOR I AM
THAT DAMNABLE | SURE PIERRE AND
WAR HAD NEVER A T WILL SOON BE
) EVEN BEGUN. £

b

7 PERHAPS [T
18 TIME WE WERE
MORE LIKE MATTHEW

AND 'BECCA. WITH
A FAMILY OF OUR

OWN TO CARE /
FOR? <

S|ISTER FOR FIVE
MINUTES, WE NEED
SOMEONE TO
PLAY THE /
FIDDLE.

PIERRE--IF YOU
CAN LINHAND MY

$

s,
v

7
L

R

W Miss LOXLEY, N
¥ 1 WOULD DEEM IT

YOU NEED TO PRACTISE--
FOR AFTER THE WAR, THE 3
BOYS WILL BE LINING UP 4N

: FOR YOU!




WITH THE APDVENT OF THE SPRING THAW,
THE MILITIA WAS RECALLEP As THE NIAGARA
PENINSULA AGAIN CAME LNDER L. 6. ATTACK,

TIRED OF BETRAYAL 8Y AMERICAN 5FIES
AND SYMPATHISER S, THE GOVERNMENT
ARRESTEDP A NUMBER OF SUSPECTED
TRAITORS. AFTER TRIAL, SEVERAL
WERE HANGED AT BURLING TON

HEIGHTS.

JOSEFPH WILLCOCKS® RAIPERS CONTINHER
THEIR PEAPLY ASSALULTS, BURNING VILLAGES AND
FARMS, HUNPREDS OF SETTLERS FLED TO THE FORTE
AFTER THEIR LIVESTOCK AND SUFFPLIES WERE STOLEN.

EARLY IN JULY, A LARGE AMERICAN
FORCE CAPTURED FORT ERIE:
THEN MARCHED ON CHIPPEWA,
WHERE THEY INFLICTED A CRUSHING
PEFEAT ON BRITISH ANZ CANAZIAN
TROOFS,




July, 1814 ‘

After much painful contemplation, \
Aaron and 1 have decided that —

in face of the dangers —we have
no option but fo leave our home.

e e e gl

We have joined with many others |
heading for the safety of the
British forts. We have taken
everything of value we can

carry, am:! all oF our Jrves’rock \

But we have left our hearte \._,_

behind, in this homestead we )
: love so much... V‘-’—)




ﬂespeda“y hard for Ellen, for \

now she is with child, and we have |
heard that Pierre‘s Voltigeurs are
engaaged in fighting in Lower

Canafi/_,N‘

¥

s T R R

H

I feel as if this is happening in a dream,

e will ever see our home again?

I am weary 1o my very bones, and

feel like the Indians must feel, when
the Americans drive them off their
land and onto Reservations.

Many times has my faith been \
badly shaken. But I am sure the
Good Lord will see us thro Eh—)
in the end.

e

11 or rather, a nightmare. Who knows if we }HE




Only one good thing has come out of the
disruption. Verity and George have met
others of their own age; perhaps it will
help George recover from his grief at
FireBrand’s tragic end.

| And Verity is just starting to e .
| realice that she ic, in fact, an (IS that other living, breathing, real
: 8 W children actually exist!

Aurora used to counsel us to 1‘-“’”"%‘* A small blessing, like a [gm :
always look for the good when O randle glowing in a
something untoward interfered gea of darknese.
in our lives. 50, even in the midst A ——
of death and disruption, I try
2 fo appreciate the happiness of
L our children. -

=




’ o ) July 30, 1814\

My dear wife Becca— b

One week ago, we folght the hardest;
most bloody battle it has been my

misfortune fo participate in. It fook
place ar Lundy s Lane...

T e g

.....
.....

i ’ | r ¢
s I a

Pespite the numerical 5&;9&»:‘0;*# pf: =Y
our froops, the enemy fought like
demons. The battle roared on all

ariernoon and aeep info the night.

By morning, both sides were foo :
exhausted fo fight on. The Americans

Fled the fielad, but neither the Militia
ner the British regulars were able fo
pursue fhem.




We puried our )

< fallenina it
mass grave — L S\ THESE BRAVE
4\ WARRIORS... 4

I a0

] | NS\ A
The war in Edrope (s over. Britdin has won, §
they say, and will soon send new armies 12 J
hejp us. Each night I pray this madness
will so0n be over: - e

I

— bt we were i no mind
fo afford the nicefres 1o
the epemy. The American
dead were burned on a
huge funeral pyre.

Edch morning, L w.a.{:e "
fo find it never is.

My lo V%goey fo You and my
family. I would give all the
treasure in King Georges
reaim fo be with you now,
and frust that one day
goon, I shall be.

Your loving husband.




1| siezE 70 THE

ON AUGUST
13TH, BRITISH
AND CANAPIAN
FORCES LAIP

CAPTUREDP
FORT ERIE.

| WHEN THE TRAITOR JOSEPH [
| WiLLcOCKS PERISHED IN THE B
| LONG FIGHT, THEY 54y A [
| CHEER WENT UP THROUEH |
ALL THE CANADAS,

PESFITE SUCCESSFULLY HOLPING
THE FORT FROM OUR FORCES, IT
WOULP NOT BE LONG BEFORE THE
AMERICANS WITHDREW ENTIRELY
FROM THE PENINSULA. THISE TIME,
THEY WOULDP NOT RETURN,




The au’rhomf:es say the Americans have gone,
retreated fo their own string of forts on their
b side of the river. They have lost no territory,
X They have gained no fermfury ~

_ We were auowea to return home, escorted by Britich Troogerg
Almost everywhere was desolation. Houses had been looted,
orchar’ds cut down, Faelds overqr-own with weeds,

And our homestead
had not escaped

I Felt like opening my
mouth wide, and
unleashing a scream
that would enaamu]afe)
all of my fears and {
frustrations since this
peintless war began,

R —_




But Aaron is

GENTLY, My ..and George \
his mother’s Seree.

DEAR--GENTLY. WE MUST A
BE & TRONG --FOR THE ) is his fathers /7 ooy giaTer. IF we
CHILDREN'S SAKE. - boy. WORK TOGETHER, WE WILL
- 7 : §00N SSVE IT TELATIET_ ASAIN
e o/ E ]
— W
> :,1, i -.-

YOU BUILD A

/_FIRE, VERITY, AND START

PREPARING LS SOME FOOD.

ELLEN WILL HELP 4
yOUu.

WE MEN
{ WILL COMMENCE THE
NECESSARY REPAIRS
AT ONCE!

T s
T
| al

]
i
1E IH
]

|
I




were toiling from dawn to dusk

Strange to think that, while we T

Y to repair our shattered farm—
S
-y .N’I" %
o .
—
Wi
W ), Ve ! .
]I TR
—half a world away, in Ghent L1 i i

in Belgium, representatives of | £
the British king and American Mt
president were congregating

in some of Europe’s finest

_F.I_
—

PR e
R Wi HE

E

i
HiH

[ |j J
buildings. g AL
ol g DTr“ T L-IE vl [ :5 : _J_JI. |
% *‘E il | | ﬁ o ; ]h
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Adams and War
Office official
{ Henry Goulburn
' represented
¥ iveKing.

Our aim was
to rebuild
the home
we loved..,

— NN ey

The American negotiators included
Albert Gallatin, Jonathan Russell,
o John Quincy P
== j Adams... &
NOW THE WAR ===
WITH NAPOLEON |8

OVER, HIS MAJESTY \
BELIEVES OUR POLIC

B OF /MPRESSMEN

18 NO LONGER
NECESSARY..

= --FOR OUR PART,
& WE DECLARE A RETLRN

A PREVAILED PRIOR TO
= 1

812--

The same Henry Clay
who had done every-
thing in his power fo
start the war.

«.a home that had been destroyed by the
manoeuvrings of the very men who now f£i
d pledged to peace. et




It took us weeks,
the last days
working in a
fever lest we
were caugant out
by an early frost.
Finally, it was
complete.

jo (T8 .

-

',I'.l\:
RS

2] I!I;il

patriotic songs and hymns
of gratitude until my voice
was guite hoarse.

pem o

ELLEN--IT S [
& ADPRESSED RETURNING
TO YOU. FROM SOON...

A MONTREAL.
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IT 15 FROM
PIERRE'S COMMANDING
OFFICER, BAD NEWS, 4
/ THE S
PIERRE T it |
NORST % HAS BEEN KILLED CHH

T IN BATTLE, < bl |
AT T‘ !I' L 5 |
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York Militia Camp \
September g

A

Dear ‘Becca (and Ma and Pa and all the famiy), !

You wifl never guess whart I did last week. For a long time now, pecple
have been talking about seeking revenge for the Americans’ cowardly
afé&f&k gn‘ﬁ.fx’k and our parjiament. Welj, on August 15, we finally
achieved it

O Militia had travelled with a flotila
of British ships Up the Faruxent Kiver
o Benedict:

\

The heat was stifling, and many of cur men
suecumbed 10 11 on our march 1o Bladensburg
naval base.

§

/7 ie a mysfery how
we found success, AN
s for we were easily d :

/ outnumbered. N

\ ,_;m%,ﬁ

=)




Our gunners fired a salvo :
of Congreve rockets, a :
ferrifyving sighi indeéd. =M
—_— /f..’_ r‘. ' ; %

.

i 3 &= \...‘U_ "—"\r,’_ S
o D . ‘ I‘. ‘ o
Within the hour, 2

therr Militiz had B
é turned 1ail and I
ﬁ gf & \

o LE JLLLES Py LS Wy FINNX
We marched on Washington, with ferrified civifians
fleeing before our advance. We were under strict
orders from our officers

| not 1o harm any e

| private
awelling |

E or office.

A
|/

T

e

& The Americans had forched | NS _
L Thelr own dockyards rather WY SN
& Than allow them fo fall info &
oHp hands. We added fo the ¢\
& plaze by laying fire 1o many v il
= i Diildings. W G



A rousing cheer you might have (SRS

heard in Gueension rang oUt A
when our men fired the

0\ | | 4 R
No goubt the U.5. authorities ™
will brand our action barbarous \
ferrorism...bUt my fervent hope
6 it will cause them fo seek
peace all the more diligently.




! """-"-..{:ll T A2
“MamEEE k

Next day, Admiral Cockburn

attended the offices of the §

National ntelligencer, infent IT TO THE
on revenge for the inslts hed GROUND!

Siffered in that newspaper. I

W AN

4 THE FIRE MIGHT SPREAD
TO OUR HOMES, WE HAVE DONE
NEITHER YOU NOR YOUR COUNTRY

1 J' 3
4

/.80 THE RASCALS HAVE
NO FURTHER MEANS OF
ABLISING MY NAME!




THE BR/TISH AND CANADIANS SOUGHT
TO KEEFP UP THE MOMENTIUM OF THEIR
ACGRESSIVE CAMPAIGN. IN SEFTEMBER,
GOVERNOR PREVOST LED 10,000
MEN INTO AMERICA..,

/

wBHT HIS INSISTENCE ON FREMATURELY
SENDING THE BRITISH WARSHIFS INTO
ACTION ON LAKE CHAMPLAIN LED
7O THEIR PEFEAT AT THE HANPS OF

THE U.5. NAVY,

.’
-

PREVOSTS NERVE FAILEP

WHEN HE SAW THE WRECKED |,

AND CAPTURED sHIPS, HE (M

THRNED TAIL, ANP LED HIS
ARMY HOME AGAIN.



Only one week ago, a Jarge
force set out fo strike a
decisive blow against
America..,

January 15, 18615

My dearest Becca—
In time of war, how
ngkﬂf do we plinge
POm H3pPIness 10
despair!

,.-__/" it /;i_ _.,»—-' =1,

== ..by sacking her major >
port, New Orfeans, and

_ CUTTing ofF all frade

Wwith the inferic

Heavy guns ar Fort 57, Ph{% meant assallt B

by river was mfh mpossible. Alsc, the city
was ringed with bogs and cypress swamps —
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The War of 1812
Historical Summary

By Mark Zuehlke




THE OUTRAGES

If not for Henry Clay, the War of 1812 might never have happened. Many Americans fumed about
the so-called “British outrages.” When talk turned to going to war over them though, most people
hesitated. President James Madison certainly did. He realized the United States was unprepared for
war. There was no real army. It numbered barely 6,750 officers and enlisted men. States could raise
militias, but the constitution forbade forcing militiamen to fight outside the country’s borders. The
navy existed more in name than substance. Fit for service were five frigates, three sloops, seven
brigs, and sixty-two gunboats good only for coastal defense. Another five frigates listed alarmingly
in various harbours awaiting vital repairs. Only 4,000 sailors and 1,800 marines served all these ves-
sels.

Such a lack of readiness would give most sane men pause, but Clay was a man of ideas. Details were
what others made happen. The thirty-five-year-old congressman had ridden into Washington thirst-
ing for war. This would be a just and righteous war, Clay told all who would listen - and many did.
How could they not? On November 4, 1811 the Kentucky congressman was elected Speaker of the
House of Representatives in an unheard of two-to-one first-ballot vote.

Next to President Madison, Clay was America’s most
powerful politician. He was also charismatic. At six
feet, he towered over most people. He was roughly
handsome; hair so blond it was almost white, blue eyes
that varying light altered from pale to grey to robin’s
egg blue.

Clay looked like a leader, but it was his oratory that
made him one. When the debates began on the very day
that Clay stunned Congress by gliding effortlessly into
the Speaker’s chair, he used the power it invested to ad-
vance the cause of war.

Henry Clay

Clay identified the “outrages” clearly. Impressment was the one guaranteed to most raise American
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ire, so it was impressment that Clay thunderously decried. Throughout the 1600s and 1700s, the
Royal Navy had forced men to serve on its ships during times of war. In the early 1800s, Britain was
again at war with Napoleon’s France. The press gangs—hence the term impressment—scoured the
streets of Britain in search of men to force into naval service. But the press gangs also struck wher-
ever British ships entered harbours. Woe betide any man stopped on a foreign street who appeared
British and could not prove different citizenship. Press-ganged he would be.

Such was the Royal Navy’s thirst for men that merchant ships from other nations were routinely
stopped on the high seas and searched for British subjects who could be pressed. Such a search often
yielded good results, especially if the ship detained was American. Life on a Royal Navy ship was
hard, so hundreds of impressed men deserted first chance they got. The United States was an obvi-
ous refuge. English was the common language. It was accepted that men were 3¢ and able to make
of themselves what they would. A deserter who knew his way around ships could go to sea on an
American merchant vessel and prosper. At least until it was waylaid by the Royal Navy and the press
gangs came aboard.

Though America had won independence from Britain in 1783, few Britons accepted the notion of
American citizenship. This was especially true of Royal Navy admirals. Before the revolution, those
who now called themselves Americans had been subjects of the British Crown. Now the United
States claimed that anyone residing inside its borders for a scant five years was American and could
no longer be considered a British subject. It was a thin shield behind which many a man aboard an
American merchant hid without success.

Clay claimed that as many as 50 000 legitimate Americans were impressed. Other American reports

set the figure at 10,000. The numbers hardly mattered. Impressment was an affront to the authority
of a young nation.

THE LEOPARD AFFAIR

N // v i A
S\ | VR . )

The Leopard attacks the Chesapeake
Impressment of Americans began almost immediately after independence. While the practice an-
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gered the young nation, the federal government could do little more than cry foul. Regular com-
plaints by America’s ambassador fell on deaf ears in London. Then, on June 22, 1807, the impress-
ment issue was raised to a new level of controversy. In the early hours, the Chesapeake ventured into
international waters beyond Hampton Roads. Lurking close by was Leopard, a 50-gun ship of the
line, whose captain kniew that the smaller American frigate had British deserters aboard. The Ameri-
can captain denied that deserters were on Chesapeake and refused to be searched. Leopard attacked.
In fifteen minutes its broadsides killed three men and wounded eighteen others before Chesapeake
struck its flag and surrendered. Realizing this violation of another nation’s sovereignty could spark
a war, the British naval officers decided they could only remove certain deserters. Just four men
were taken into custody. Three were subsequently confirmed as Americans, but kept imprisoned
until immediately prior to war broke out in 1812. One died while in prison. The fourth man, Jenkin
Ratford, was confirmed as having deserted from the naval ship Halifax on March 10, 1807. Ratford
was hanged for desertion.

That the officers aboard Leopard had knowingly enlisted deserters from the Royal Navy mattered
not to American public opinion. The British had fired on and boarded a U.S. naval ship. It was a
grave action that could have tipped the two countries into the war that impressment and other is-
sues threatened. But neither President Thomas Jefferson nor his Secretary of State, James Madi-
son, would go down that road at that time. The Leopard Affair consequently was left to fester—an
unresolved grievance many Americans felt keenly. In early winter of 1811, Clay returned it to the
limelight by reminding Congress repeatedly that here was clear evidence that Britain did not accept
America’s sovereignty.

TROUBLE ON THE FRONTIER

Clay was not a man of the sea. He actually cared little about impressment or the Leopard affair. He
sought war so that America could gain control of the entire North American continent. Clay was a
Westerner. Kentucky stood on the edge of the American frontier. Beyond lay vast expanses of land
ripe for settlement. The only thing standing between the Americans seeking new land to cultivate
and otherwise exploit were Native Americans.

Since independence, Americans had been pushing relentlessly westward, driving one native tribe
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after another from their traditional territory. One vicious war followed another. Warriors and soldiers
fought brutally. Both took scalps, butchered women and children and burned settlements. This was
war without mercy, each side bent on purging the land of the other.

Clay and most Americans believed the British provided their enemy with military advice and weap-
ons. The trade of guns, powder, and shot for fur was represented as deliberately enabling Indians
to make war on American settlers. Furthermore, by 1810 the situation on the frontier had become
increasingly deadly.

Having faced many serious defeats and failed to prevent ever deeper incursions by settlers into their
territories, the Indians had begun setting aside inter-tribal animosities. Guided by two Shawnee
brothers, each possessed of markedly contrasting but mutually charismatic personalities, an Indian
confederacy had been born. Tecumseh provided the confederacy’s political and military leadership.
His younger brother, Tenskwatawa, provided spiritual guidance. Nicknamed the Prophet, Tenskwa-
tawa believed he spoke directly for the Great Spirit. To gain entry to heaven, he said, the people must
reject the ways of the whites.

The two brothers founded a village called Tippecanoe on the banks of the Wabash River in Indiana
Territory. Their followers lived in accordance to the Prophet’s teachings. Nearby whites named it
Prophetstown and believed it was a place where warriors were incited and trained to make war upon
them.

Tecumseh was bracing for war, but not willingly. He saw no alternative. On September 20, 1809,
Indiana Governor William Henry Harrison had assembled a collection of chiefs with scant claim to
legitimacy at Fort Wayne. In exchange for bribes and various trade goods, these chiefs turned 3 mil-
lion acres of Indiana Territory over to the United States. The American government confirmed the
Treaty of Fort Wayne as legal and binding upon the tribes its land claimed. Tecumseh warned that
any whites attempting to settle in this land —where his people had taken refuge after being driven
out of Ohio—would do so at risk of their lives.

As word of the treaty spread, hundreds of warriors from a mosaic of tribes gathered at Tippecanoe.
Tecumseh turned to the British in Upper Canada for vitally needed supplies to feed them. Harrison

was enraged when he learned that the British were providing humanitarian aid to Tecumseh’s con-
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federacy. He was equally angry that the tribes were rallying against his treaty. They were supposed
to have accepted their fate. Fearing for their lives, nearby American settlers declared Prophetstown
“a British scheme, and...the agents of that power are constantly exciting the Indians to hostilities
against the United States.” One resolution sent to Washington from Illinois called Prophetstown “the
seditious village...the great nursery of hostile Indians and traitorous British Indian traders.”

Harrison plotted Tippecanoe’s destruction. Warriors were returning to the village from British trad-
ing posts laden with rifles, fuses, powder and lead, he claimed, and “the language and measures of
the Indians indicate nothing but war.” In reality, Tecumseh was trying to keep his people in check.
He knew the time for war was not ripe. That time would come when the Americans inevitably de-
clared war on Britain and he could look to Upper Canada for allies. Tecumseh could read the tide of
American opinion. He heard the words of powerful men like Clay and Harrison. Men who would
not stop until the United States made war on Britain and presented them with the excuse to make all
North America theirs.

BATTLE OF TIPPECANOE

Governor Harrison had no intention of leaving Tippecanoe alone until Congress decided whether or
not to make war on Britain. “The people of this Territory and Kentucky are extremely pressing of
their service for an expedition into the Indian Country,” he declared. “Any number of men might be
obtained for this purpose or for a march into Canada.” Even as Congress convened in Washington in
November, 1811, Harrison and a thousand regular troops and militia closed on Tippecanoe. Tecum-
seh and many warriors were away. Working to expand the confederacy, Tecumseh had gone south to
parlay with the Creek nation. On November 6, Harrison sent a message proposing negotiations. But
an American deserter warned the Prophet and warrior leaders that this was a ruse and the plan was
to attack at sunrise. Defending Tippecanoe with only 500 warriors was impossible, so the Prophet
ordered a night assault on Harrison’s camp.

Although the warriors achieved initial surprise and inflicted heavy casualties, they were ultimately
routed after a two and a half hour battle. Almost a fifth of Harrison’s men were killed or wounded
in exchange for between 20 and 50 warriors killed. Stunned by his losses, Harrison went on the de-
fensive rather than attack the village. On November 8, when an American patrol approached Tippe-
danoe, it was found abandoned.
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Harrison ordered the village plundered and burned. The granary, critical to feeding the people through
winter, was also destroyed. When the Americans rode away, nothing of Tippecanoe remained but
ashes. In the early spring of 1812, Tecumseh stood “upon the ashes of my home” and “summoned
the spirits of the braves who had fallen in their vain attempts to protect their homes from the grasp-
ing invader, and as I snuffed up the smell of their blood from the ground I swore once more eternal
hatred —the hatred of an avenger.”

REMEMBER TIPPECANOE!

Harrison was also calling for vengeance. Despite the fact it was he who attacked Tippecanoe, Har-
rison and congressmen like Clay manipulated the facts to use the losses suffered by the Americans
to accuse the Indians and British of treachery. Sixty-eight Americans died in the night battle and 120
were wounded. This “blood of our murdered countrymen must be avenged,” Major General Andrew
Jackson wrote from his militia headquarters in Tennessee. “I do hope that Government will see that
it is necessary to act efficiently and that this hostile band which must be excited to war by the secret
agents of Great Britain must be destroyed.” The Kentucky legislature passed a resolution blaming
Great Britain for “inciting the savages...to murder the inhabitants of our defenseless frontiers —fur-
nishing them with arms and ammunition...to attack our frontiers; to the loss of a number of brave
men.

In Washington, Felix Grundy of Tennessee told his fellow congressmen that America must “drive
the British from our Continent.” Grundy was one of a carefully orchestrated concert of congressmen
singing the tune composed by Speaker Henry Clay. Known as the War Hawks, most hailed from
western states and territories. Their sole purpose during the Twelfth Congress was to force a motion
of war. Driving the British from North America, Grundy said, would “ensure they no longer have an
opportunity of intriguing with our Indian neighbors, and setting on the ruthless savage to tomahawk
our women and children. That nation will lose her Canadian trade, and, by having no resting place
in this country, her means of annoying us will be diminished.”

Annoyances there were in plenty and Clay regularly stepped from the Speaker’s chair to remind con-

gress of them. Openly inciting and aiding the Indians to attack Americans on the frontier, impress-
ment on the high seas, and the lingering aftertaste of the Leopard Affair were his favourite cards to
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play. But there was also the more complex orders-in-council, which was a direct affront to America’s
freedom of international commerce.

In a case of tit for tat, Britain and France had, over the past six years, each issued edicts intended
to cripple the other’s economy and ability to wage war. The edicts made it illegal for other nations
to conduct business with their enemy. Any American ships entering French ports were subject to
seizure by the Royal Navy, while those that ventured into British ports risked being taken by French
naval vessels. As all of Europe was controlled by Napoleon’s France at this time, America was ef-
fectively barred from doing business with any nations on the continent.

Hoping to force the British and French to rescind their legislation, the United States retaliated with
the American Embargo Act. In its final form, the embargo cut off all American trade to Europe and
the European colonies. While the embargo had a devastating impact on imports of goods to Britain,
it was equally ruinous to the American economy. Overnight all cotton exports ceased. Of 46 million
pounds of cotton exported annually, 80 percent went to Britain. With no provisions made to find al-
ternative markets, textile mills across the country closed and cotton crops went unharvested for lack
of any buyer. Prior to the embargo, more than half of British exports of wool and cotton products
flowed to America and a quarter of its trade was with the United States. The loss of these markets
threatened Britain with economic depression.

Yet the British refused to rescind the orders-in-council because it was one of few diplomatic and
economic weapons it could direct against France during a time when the war with Napoleon was
going badly. One after another of Britain’s European allies was being forced to make peace with
Napoleon after suffering defeat on the battlefield. By 1811, Britain was largely isolated and alone.
And the British House of Commons was increasingly aware that it would soon have to fight another
war on a battlefield across the Atlantic.

CLAY’S WAR

In Congress the debates raged on through the winter and spring of 1812. On one side were the War
Hawks and most Republicans. In opposition, were the Federalists. Most Federalists were from New
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England or the southern coastal slave states. Both regions depended on international trade. The
orders-in-council and impressment were issues that impacted their constituents more heavily and
immediately than they did the western states where the Republicans dominated. The Federalists
advocated negotiation and conciliation with Britain and strongly opposed war. When they raised
objection to the War Hawks, the Federalists were shouted down. No appeal to reason could counter
their emotional rhetoric.

“This war, if carried successfully,” Grundy stated, “will have its advantages. We shall drive the Brit-
ish from our continent...I therefore feel anxious not only to add the Floridas to the South, but the
Canadas to the North of this empire.” Britain’s “outrages” against America, Clay argued, were not
aimed at weakening France but to destroy the United States “as a rival...She sickens at your prosper-
ity, and beholds in your growth— your sails spread on every ocean, and your numerous seamen, the
foundations of a power which, at no very distant day, is to make her tremble for naval superiority.”

Bills were passed that pushed America towards war. December 31, 1811, the president was autho-
rized to recruit 25,000 men to the regular army. The army’s purpose, Clay said, was “distinctly to be
war, and war with Great Britain.” Nothing could stem the tide. Various compromises were pro-
posed and tossed aside. Finally in May, Clay went to President Madison. A “majority of Congress-
men would support war if the President recommended it,” he said. On June 1, Madison did precisely
that. Three days later, by a margin of 79 to 49, the House voted for war. On June 17, the Senate ap-
proved a motion for an immediate and unrestricted war on Britain by 19 to 13 votes. Madison signed
the bill into law the following day. “We shall have war,” Clay wrote ecstatically. “Every patriot
bosom must throb with anxious solicitude for the result. Every patriot arm will assist in making that
result conducive to the glory of our beloved country.”

MAKING WAR, SEEKING PEACE

“At the moment of the declaration of war,” Secretary of State James Monroe wrote, “the President,
regretting the necessity which produced it, looked to its termination.” He hoped the declaration alone
would convince the British to mend their ways and seek a peace. But Madison was unaware that
three weeks before he signed the war bill the British government had been thrown into disarray. On
May 11, a deranged man named John Bellingham had gunned down Prime Minister Spencer Percev-
al. With his death, Lord Liverpool was named prime minister. Liverpool retained Viscount Castlere-
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agh as secretary of foreign affairs. The most powerful man in the British cabinet, Castlereagh was
a hard-line opponent of accommodation with the Americans over issues such as impressment. He
was, however, astute enough to realize that the orders-in-council were ruining the British economy.
Therefore, on the very day. Madison signed the declaration of war, Castlereagh pushed through leg-
islation cancelling them. But America’s other grievances would not be subject to negotiation. This
left the United States no alternative but to actually try making war. Although authorized to raise an
army of 25,000 men, that strength existed only on paper. Urged to pass a bill to greatly increase the
navy’s size, Congress had whittled down the number of new frigates from a requested ten, to six,
then to five, four, three, and finally none at all. Only a third of existing frigates deemed unseaworthy
were authorized for repair. A bill that would have armed and placed the state militias under federal
control for deployment wherever the government deemed necessary was defeated.

Complaining to his old friend, and former president, Thomas Jefferson, Madison said although Con-
gress was hell bent on enabling America to invade Canada, it had “provided, after two months delay,
for a regular force requiring twelve [months] to raise it, and after three months for a volunteer force,
on terms not likely to raise it at all for that object.”

President Madison Thomas Jefferson

On June 6, War Secretary Dr. William Eustis reported that only 5,000 men had volunteered to join
the army under the new bill. That brought its total to about 11,750 officers and men. The troops were
poorly trained he said, and the officers were either young and inexperienced or aged veterans of the
Revolutionary War. Some states had pledged their militias, but all of New England had refused. This
meant an attack against either New Brunswick or Nova Scotia was impractical, leaving Halifax —the
largest British harbour in the western hemisphere —safe from either sea or land threat. Even among
those states offering militia, most refused to allow them to serve beyond American borders.

The navy was in such dire condition that Secretary of the Navy Paul Hamilton proposed keeping it
hidden away in safe harbours to preserve the few vessels capable of fighting. Madison would have
none of it. The navy must fight and he ordered Commodore John Rodgers and Captain Stephen De-
catur to put to sea in order to protect American merchantmen. Rodgers sailed from New York within
ten minutes of receiving the order. He had five ships: frigates President, United States, and Congress,
the sloop Hornet and the brig Argus. Rodgers was not bent on protecting American shipping. His aim
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was to intercept a reported British convoy of 100 merchant ships that had sailed from Jamaica for
Britain. Having departed so quickly, Rodgers was long gone when revised orders directed his fleet
northward with just two of the ships while Decatur patrolled the American coast in a southerly di-
rection from New York. Learning Rodgers had already sailed, Madison and the administration were
powerless to recall the impetuous and daring sailor from his self-appointed mission.

\ MATTER OF MARCHING

Madison was almost as helpless when it came to directing land operations. Most Americans had
agreed with Thomas Jefferson that the “acquisition of Canada this year as far as the neighbourhood
of Quebec will be a mere matter of marching.” But where should the army march? Major General
Harry Dearborn commanded. A sixty-one-year-old veteran of the Revolution, Dearborn proposed a
three-pronged invasion. A main column would advance via Lake Champlain on Montreal, a second
would advance along the Niagara River and a third would sweep out of Fort Detroit into the heart
of Upper Canada.
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Dearborn set no timetable for these operations, so each was left to develop according to its own
schedule. Nor did Dearborn have any intelligence on British strength in the Canadas. Such Ameri-
can intelligence estimates as there were reported regular army strength as small while the number of
Royal Navy vessels on hand was such that Britain dominated the seas.

The British were actually weak on all fronts. Lieutenant General and Governor in Chief Sir George
Prevost had about 5,600 regular troops available with 1,200 of these stationed in Upper Canada.

Technically, in Lower Canada he could muster 60,000 militiamen, but Prevost held them in little
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regard. Upper Canada could provide about 10,000 militiamen, but Prevost considered only 4,000 of
these worth arming. The others, he felt, were as likely to desert as fight. Prevost could rely on some
support from the Indians, but it was unknown what numbers would come forward or what their fight-
ing skill might be. Although the British navy in the western hemisphere boasted about 700 ships,
only 79 were in North American waters.

Prevost expected the American main effort to fall against Upper Canada and felt his forces there
were unlikely to win unless Britain sent reinforcements. He was unwilling to shift troops from
Lower Canada because this would weaken his ability to defend the vital fur-trade capital of Montreal
and the strategically important city of Quebec. Gloomily, he predicted that a determined American
attack on Canada would succeed. The only hope of holding on to any part of the Canadas, save Que-
bec City, would be if the invasion was “undertaken presumptuously and without sufficient means.”
There was, of course, the slight chance the Americans might not invade if they were not provoked
by either his forces or the Indians.

Prevost worried, however, that his Upper Canadian army commander would refuse to remain quietly
on the defensive. Major General Isaac Brock had a reputation for recklessness. “Nothing should be
impossible to a soldier; the word impossible should not be found in a soldier’s dictionary,” Brock
had once said. It was a motto Brock lived by.

I WOULD
NEVER ASK MY
MEN TO GO WHERE
I AM NOT WILLING

TO LEAD THEM,

Major General Isaac Brock
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He also thirsted to make a name for himself - something that could hardly be done by following Pre-
yost's orders that nothing the Americans did would “justify offensive operations being undertaken,
unless they were solely calculated to strengthen a defensive attitude.”

Brock had wanted to immediately attack American’s border forts. Instead, Prevost’s instructions left
no option but to put his troops to work strengthening the British forts that guarded the border. Brock
would have to wait for the Americans to make the first move.

HULL INVADES CANADA

The force charged with attacking Upper Canada was commanded by Michigan Territory Governor
William Hull. Madison had encouraged Hull to advance his troops to Fort Detroit prior to the war
declaration. With little enthusiasm for his command, Hull had dithered in Urbana, Ohio. Only on
June 15 did he set out with a powerful 2,000-man army to march the 185 miles north to Fort Detroit.
Due to the great distances and dependence on horse couriers to pass information, Hull left Urbana
unaware that the government had declared war. Not wanting to precipitate matters, Hull felt no need
to hasten to the border fort. On June 26, as the army faced crossing the 50-mile-wide Black Swamp,
a note from Eustis was received that urged Hull to greater haste. But the war secretary neglected to
mention the war declaration.
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Finally gaining the River Raisin at Frenchtown on July 2, Hull received another note from Eustis
advising that America was at war and counting on him to invade Canada from Fort Detroit. As the
American schooner Cayuga was in harbour at Frenchtown, Hull loaded much of the army’s supplies
aboard it to carry to the fort. Among the items were Hull’s private papers. Cayuga was soon taken by
British sailors and his papers were passed to Lieutenant Colonel Thomas St. George at Fort Malden,
which lay across the border from Fort Detroit. The papers revealed Hull’s entire invasion plan and
detailed his army’s strength and composition.

Losing any element of surprise hardly mattered because Hull had no real strategic options. On July
|2 he sent troops across the Detroit River into Upper Canada and occupied the pleasant French Ca-
nadian village of Sandwich. Colonel Lewis Cass unfurled the Stars and Stripes from about his waist
as he splashed ashore. As Fort Detroit’s cannon loomed over the village from across the river, Brock
had wisely decided against opposing the landing.



Despite the easy crossing, Hull worried. Earlier, he had attempted to win the region’s Indians over or
at least gain their neutrality. Tecumseh had refused to attend the meeting, but sent a message calling
on them instead to rally around Britain to defeat the Americans. He closed the message by saying,
“] have taken sides with the King, my father, and I will suffer my bones to bleach upon this shore
before I will recross the stream to join in any council of neutrality.” None of the chiefs in attendance
came over to Hull’s side.

W

Chief Tecumseh

Fearing the Indians would attack either Fort Detroit or his 200-mile-long supply line back to Urbana,
Hull was reluctant to advance beyond Sandwich. He resorted to distributing fiery messages that in-
vited Canadians to seize the moment to win their freedom from Britain by siding with America while
at the same time threatening to slaughter them if they rejected this call. “No white man found fight-
ing by the Side of an Indian will be taken prisoner. Instant destruction will be his Lot,” Hull warned.

As the Indians and British were agreed on fighting at each other’s side, this threat sufficiently wor-
ried enough Upper Canadians that a third of the militia quietly melted away into the night. The other
two-thirds, however, were incensed by Hull’s threat to grant them no quarter and expressed more
determination to fight. “This is a pioneer society,” one observed, “not a frontier society. No Daniel
Boones stalk the Canadian forests, ready to knock off an Injun with a Kentucky rifle or do battle over
an imagined slight.”

Upper Canada was a peaceable place. Rather than winning the land by conquest of the Indians, Up-
per Canadians lived alongside them. While not an entirely harmonious relationship, there was not
the hatred between whites and Indians that held sway in the United States. Each left the other mostly
free to live according to their traditions.

While still refusing to budge from Sandwich, Hull unleashed his cavalry to raid nearby farms for
food, equipment, and fodder for the army’s animals. Every farm within 60 miles was pillaged while
the farm families looked on helplessly. Brock's attempts to intercept the raiders were generally fruit-
less, although there were some small skirmishes. During one, Captain William McCullough became
the first American to collect an Indian scalp in the campaign. He proudly wrote his wife describing
how he tore the scalp from the dead warrior’s head with his teeth.
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The raiders stripped the farms bare, burned any crops, cut down many fruit trees, tore apart fences,
and wrecked houses and outbuildings.

Having ensured the locals were now united in opposing the Americans, Hull ordered his army to
erect fortifications around Sandwich while he slipped back to Fort Detroit to write reports to Wash-
ington. He complained to Eustis that his cannon were useless and he needed at least 1,500 more men
to continue the invasion. Learning on July 30 that the British had seized the American Fort Mackinac
at the far northern end of Lake Huron, Hull’s anxiety worsened. This fort was 300 miles by boat from
Fort Detroit and the British forces responsible for its capture could not possibly threaten him. But the
fort’s fall had coincided with the sudden move of the Wyandot tribe across the Detroit River and into
British lines. Hull imagined hundreds of Indians were massing to massacre his army.

His worst fears seemed realized when Tecumseh and a raiding party ambushed a supply column
coming to Fort Detroit from Urbana on August 5. Three days later, Hull ordered Sandwich aban-
doned and withdrew his army behind the walls of Fort Detroit.

Realizing that Hull and his army were thoroughly demoralized, Brock decided the time to defeat the
Americans was at hand. Brock arrived at Fort Malden with 50 regulars, 250 Canadian militia, and a
6-pound cannon. Here Tecumseh and Brock met for the first time.

When Tecumseh’s warriors fired their muskets to salute Brock’s arrival, the British general quietly
told the warrior leader that this was “really an unnecessary waste of ammunition when Detroit had
to be captured.” Tecumseh turned to his warriors and said, “This is a man.” Brock concluded of
Tecumseh that “a more sagacious or a more gallant Warrior does not I believe exist.” These two
kindred fighters set siege to Fort Detroit on August 16 with 300 regulars, 400 militia, 30 artillerymen
manning 5 cannon, and 600 warriors. Brock sent a message warning that if Hull did not surrender,
the British could not control the warriors and a massacre was inevitable.



The meeting of Tecumseh and Isaac Brock

As Brock’s troops advanced the following morning, Hull hoisted a flag of truce and quickly sur-
rendered. Some 1,600 Ohio militia were paroled home while Hull and 582 regular army soldiers
were marched to prisoner-of-war camps near Quebec City. This bloodless victory lett the British in
undisputed control of the Upper Canadian frontier.

FALTERING NEGOTIATIONS

Despite the first American attempt on the Canadas ending in resounding defeat, President Madison
and Secretary of State Monroe decided that peace was only possible if the British ceased impress-
ment. “Having gone to war, it seemed to be our duty, not to withdraw from it, till the rights of our
country were placed on a more secure basis,” Monroe explained.

At the same time, Prevost was still trying to keep the war from escalating. Upon learning that the
orders-in-council had been cancelled, he thought the Americans would willingly agree to negotia-
tions. Prevost sent an emissary to meet with Dearborn at his headquarters near Albany, New York.
Prevost offered a ceasefire that Dearborn readily accepted.

Since being appointed to command the army, Dearborn had approached the task with a complete
lack of enthusiasm. A “ponderous, flabby figure, weighing two hundred and fifty pounds,” Dearborn
was nicknamed Granny by his troops. By the time the ceasefire was agreed on August 9, he had suc-
ceeded in only recruiting a mere 1,200 men from the New England states and was woefully short of
the strength needed to invade Lower Canada.

It took six days for Dearborn’s report of the ceasefire to reach Washington. Madison was infuriated
and War Secretary Eustis immediately replied that Dearborn was to advise Prevost that the ceasefire
was over. Eustis told Dearborn to “proceed with the utmost vigor in your operations.” He demanded
that Dearborn immediately capture the towns of Niagara and Kingston. This would cut Upper Can-
ada off from Lower Canada.

Chastened, Dearborn reported that he would “push towards Montreal at the same time that our troops
on the western frontier of this state strike at Upper Canada.” These two operations would begin in
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October. Madison, meanwhile. had learned of Hull’s surrender. He had expected Hull to easily take
Upper Canada and transform Lake Erie into an American pond. A British defeat would have left
the Indians “neutral or submissive to our will,” he said, and prompted thousands of Americans to
enlist. Instead, Hull had “sunk before obstacles at which not an officer near him would have paused,
and threw away an entire army.” The surrender would surely turn “the people of Canada...against
us” and encourage more native tribes to join the British. “A general damp spread over our Affairs,”
Madison wrote.

QUEENSTON HEIGHTS

The American forces facing Niagara Peninsula were gathered at Lewiston, New York—three hun-
dred miles west of Dearborn’s headquarters near Albany. Deciding that the rigors of such a journey
would be too much for him, Dearborn sent Virginian General Alexander Smyth with vague instruc-
tion that he was to share command with New York General Stephen Van Rensselaer. Smyth marched
to Lewiston with 1,650 regulars to reinforce the 3,000 troops already there.

An unwilling political appointee, Van Rensselaer was a Federalist opposed to the war. Most of his
troops were New York Republicans, who could scarce believe he was in charge. Van Rensselaer had
surrounded himself with Federalist-inclined officers and kept himself distant from the rank and file.
Lacking military experience, he leaned heavily on his cousin and aide-de-camp Lieutenant Colonel
Solomon Van Rensselaer for guidance. None of the senior officers supported the war or were in-
clined to get on with attacking Niagara. Instead, upon learning of Hull’s surrender, Van Rensselaer
became convinced that he was being set up by the Republican administration in Washington. Were
he to attack and fail, Van Rensselaer believed he would be made a scapegoat for the administration’s
botched prosecution of the war.

When Smyth reached Buffalo, south of Lewiston, on September 29, Van Rensselaer’s suspicion
that he was the victim of a Republican conspiracy deepened. Smyth, for his part, refused to advance
his men from Buffalo to Lewiston. Instead, the two officers bickered by letter over where the army
should cross the Niagara River and who would command. The Van Rensselaers were agreed that the
best crossing point was at Queenston Heights where British defences were weak due to the natural
barrier of rapids. It was the anticipation of attacking here that had led Van Rensselaer to situate his
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troops in Lewiston, directly opposite Queenston. Smyth argued that the better crossing point was at
Buffalo, although the British had stronger defences on the opposite shore.

Van Rensselaer finally decided to break the stalemate by attacking independent of Smyth. On Octo-
ber 10. he ordered his men to prepare to cross the turbulent waters in boats after nightfall. The long
delay had enabled Major General Brock to travel from Detroit to Niagara to oversee its defence. He
had 400 regulars, 800 militiamen, and 200 Indian warriors. The militiamen had only returned to duty
after bringing in their harvests and were exhausted. Morale amongst the regulars of the 49th Foot
was so low after months of inactivity that the men were in a mutinous state. Brock realized his forces
were desperately thin on the ground—a problem exacerbated by his uncertainty over where the
Americans were likely to strike. Although the Americans were split between Buffalo and Lewiston,
Brock thought neither location a likely launching point. If he were in charge, Brock would force a
crossing upstream where the river was narrower. So he split the majority of his forces between Chip-
pewa and Fort Erie in anticipation of the Americans doing the sensible thing.

The battle would be decided right on the river bank, Brock either winning a decisive victory or go-
ing down in bloody defeat. “I say decisive,” he wrote his brother, “because if I should be beaten, the
province is inevitably gone, and should I be victorious, I do not imagine the gentry from the other
side will be anxious to return to the charge.”

During the night of October 10-11, an assault force attempted to cross in front of Queenston only to
discover that the boat carrying the oars for the entire fleet had drifted downstream and run aground.
Van Rensselaer ordered the operation set back forty-eight hours.

At three in the morning on August 13, the 600 troops in the assault wave boarded thirteen boats and
began rowing across the river under cover of a heavy artillery bombardment. Three boats carrying
about 200 men were swept downstream and out of the fight, but the remaining ten gained the oppos-
ing shore. A mere 46 regulars and handful of Canadian militia met them with musket fire. No army
in the world could match the British soldier’s rate of musketry - two shots a minute.

Solomon Van Rensselaer fell critically wounded. The musket fire was withering while from high up
on the cliff of Queenston Heights cannon lashed the Americans with canister shot that sprayed them

with lethal bits of iron. With the attack faltering, Captain John E. Wool led 60 men along the shore-
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line in search of a rumoured trail that led to the summit.

Brock and his aide, Lieutenant Colonel John Macdonell, meanwhile, had been awakened by the can-
non fire. They galloped to Queenston, picking up troops and militia along the way. Arriving at dawn,
Brock saw a second wave of Americans in boats on the water. He reached the cannon battery on the
summit just as Wool’s Americans broke from the trees. Brock ordered the guns spiked and the gun-
ners to retreat to Queenston village.

As the second wave of Americans tumbled from their boats, the battle hung in the balance. Jumping
from his horse, Brock formed 100 regulars and an equal number of militiamen into line and ordered
an advance up the steep slope of the heights. A musket ball tore open Brock’s wrist, but he continued
to walk toward the Americans. When the British and Canadians were 165 feet from the American
line, Brock ordered them to fix bayonets and charge. As he rushed forward, sword held high, an
American scout rose from nearby bushes and fired a ball from his long musket that struck Brock in
the chest just above the heart.

The attack broke with Brock’s death. Gathering their fallen commander, the men began retreating.
They were well along when Macdonell came towards them with a small number of militiamen in
tow. Managing to rally about 70 militia and regulars, Macdonell ordered a new charge. "Revenge the
General,” the men yelled as they lunged towards the several hundred Americans on the summit of
Queenston Heights. Moments later Macdonell was mortally wounded and the attack collapsed. The
survivors withdrew northward from Queenston to Vrooman’s Point.

Here they were joined by Major General Roger Sheaffe, who had under his command 300 regulars,
250 militiamen, and an artillery battery. Within several hours Sheaffe’s force had grown to more than
400 regulars, an equal number of militia, and 300 Mohawk warriors. Although still outnumbered by
the Americans on the heights, who had used the time to erect fortifications, Sheaffe ordered another
attack.

Sheaffe expected to fail. But he was unaware that the Americans were badly disorganized and de-
moralized. At Lewiston hundreds of New York militia had asserted their right to refuse to serve
beyond the nation’s borders. They sat on the river bank to watch the battle like spectators at a sports
event. Only 350 American regulars and 250 New Yorkers were on the heights.
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When the Mohawks snuck up behind the Americans and attacked, they wheeled to meet the threat.
This left them with backs turned to Sheaffe’s main force. After the men fired a musket volley, She-
affe ordered a bayonet charge. As the British and Canadians ran forward the Americans fled. Most
were unable to regain the boats and escape. More than 300 were killed or wounded and 958 surren-
dered. British and Canadian losses totaled only 14 dead, 77 wounded and 21 missing. But Brock’s
death was sorely felt and also meant the man most capable of defending Canada was lost.

Brock’s death, however, galvanized Upper Canadian opposition to the Americans. More than 5,000
militiamen attended his funeral on October 16 at Niagara. Sheaffe reported to Prevost that no longer
were Upper Canadian militiamen failing to turn out for duty. Rather they were coming forward to
volunteer and were “very alert at their several posts and continue generally to evince the best dispo-
sitions.”

Not so across the river. The New York militia bluntly refused to consider advancing into Upper
Canada. Van Rensselaer was recalled and Smyth given full command. But he could do nothing. The
American campaigns against the Canadas were at a standstill.

BRITISH REVERSES AT SEA

Because news from North America could only be transmitted to Britain by slow sailing ships, reports
of Brock’s victory at Fort Detroit arrived at the same time as he was killed at Queenston. Secretary of
War and Colonial Office Sir Henry Bathurst and his Colonial Office Undersecretary John Goulburn
were relieved to finally receive some good news regarding the war with America. Correspondence
from Prevost had been consistently grim and pessimistic. Prevost complained of endless shortages
in equipment, supplies and men. He feared the Indian warriors would meet American aggression
with wanton and unnecessary bloodshed that would make negotiating a peace settlement impossible.

As Bathurst was preoccupied with the war against France, it fell to Goulburn to handle Britain’s
response to the war with America. In fact, the twenty-eight year old was effectively in charge of
running the British Empire. Bright and articulate, Goulburn believed the reasons offered by Presi-
dent Madison for declaring war camouflaged America’s true intentions. These were to conquer the
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Canadas and gain control of all North America. This would be followed by the eventual genocide
of all the Indian peoples. Goulburn further thought that any unnecessary bloodshed would result
more often from American action rather than the Indians. He advised Prevost that the Indian war-
riors could be kept in check if they were commanded by British or Canadian officers experienced in
working with them.

Goulburn also sent practical help in the form of two heavily laden supply ships to Canada and suf-
ficient clothing and equipment to supply another 800 British regulars. Prevost was also permitted to
promise that every colonist who chose to join the army would be granted 100 acres of land. Finally,
he wanted Prevost to think less about negotiating peace than making war. Although so far victorious
on land, the war was proving a disaster at sea.

The British took great pride in their navy, believing it could never be beaten. Yet through the late
summer and fall the Americans had inflicted a series of stinging defeats that threatened to shatter this
myth of invincibility. On August 19, the frigate Guerriére had been sunk by the Constitution about
400 miles south of Newfoundland. Constitution was commanded by Captain Isaac Hull, whose
uncle had surrendered Fort Detroit just four days earlier. Its crew numbered 460 serving 55 guns
compared to Guerriere's 49 guns and 280-man crew. But Captain James R. Dacre expected British
superiority in seamanship and fighting ability would carry the day. Hull had trained his crew to a
standard of accuracy the British could not match. In the ensuing close-range duel Guerriere lost most
of its sails and rigging.

After 15 men were killed and 63 wounded, Dacre ordered the ship’s colours struck. Constitution had
only 7 sailors killed and 7 wounded. Guerriere was so badly damaged Hull had to take the British
crew aboard and then burn the listing hulk.

This defeat was just the beginning. When Commodore John Rodgers returned to America after a
70-day voyage that ultimately took him to within sight of the English coast, he sailed into port with
seven British merchant ships in tow. Then, on October 8, the British brig Frolic was captured by
the American sloop Wasp near the West Indies. Although the arrival of the far larger ship of the line
Poitiers later that day reversed the situation with Wasp surrendering and Frolic being freed, once
again British invincibility was thrown into question.

Public morale in Britain was noticeably shaken by the realization that the nation’s merchant fleet was

133



no longer safe to ply the seas without fear of interception by American ships. It was also clear that
the Royal Navy could be bested. In America, however, public opinion was increasingly opposed to
the war. No victories at sea could make up for the defeats on land. President Madison was blamed
for starting the war and Fo\r its poor prosecution.

A DISMAL WINTER

Not only did Madison have to fight a war in the fall and winter of 1812, but he was also running
for re-election as president. His opponent was a fellow Republican, but one whose support came
from the New England and other northern states where the war was unpopular. Madison’s support
was concentrated in the southern and western frontier states. Madison had hoped that the campaign
against the Canadas could be rekindled in the last months of the year. But military developments had
been little short of a joke.

Facing Niagara Peninsula, General Alexander Smyth had been urged to take Fort Erie. But after
making a half-hearted effort and being repulsed, Smyth had stood the army down for the winter.
He then got permission from Dearborn to visit his family in Virginia. Smyth headed south with no
intention of ever returning.

Dearborn, meanwhile, finally gathered 3,000 regulars and an equal number of militia at Plattsburgh,
New York and marched on Montreal in mid-November. The army was detected by French-Canadian
scouts the moment it entered Lower Canada. Major Charles-Michel d'Trumberry de Salaberry of the
French Canadian Provincial Corps of Light Infantry moved to meet it with just two small compa-
nies of Voltigeurs and 300 Indian warriors. After a short skirmish on November 20, where confused
American troops fired on each other, Dearborn withdrew to Plattsburgh.

AMERICAN SUPREMACY ON THE LAKES

One thing Madison had always understood was the importance of controlling the Great Lakes. But
America had entered the war ill prepared to gain their mastery. If the British lost the ability to move
men and supplies freely by water, they would be less able to defend their communities and forts
scattered along the shorelines. Lying as it did at the nexus of Lower and Upper Canada, Lake On-
tario was the most strategically vital lake. On September 3, Madison had ordered Commodore Isaac
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Chauncey to gain control of it. Chauncey raised his flag at Sackets Harbour on the southeastern shore
and studied the ships under his command. Only one— the brig Oneida—was a war ship. The others
were converted lake schooners.

Undaunted, Chauncey 'sallied with Oneida and six schooners against the British corvette Royal
George. Outnumbered, the ship fled into Kingston Harbour. Unable to press the attack because of
cannon fire from the town’s fort, Chauncey withdrew. Chauncey rightly claimed that he controlled
[ake Ontario and pointed to the refusal of the British ships in Kingston to come out and fight.

On both sides, meanwhile, a fierce race began as boat builders sought to construct bigger, more pow-
erful ships to go into service with the spring. The Americans launched Madison, a 24-gun corvette
that was the largest ship on the lake, in November. They also laid the keel of General Pike, another
even larger 26-gun corvette. British boat-building efforts were hampered by lack of material and
poor management. But work at York on a large frigate named Sir Isaac Brock was underway and
repairs were also started on an old schooner, Duke of Gloucester.

Both the British and Americans were also busy on fleets for Lake Erie. The Americans soon had a
larger fleet there than the British. But these ships were based in the harbour of Presque Isle in Penn-
sylvania. This harbour was sheltered by a long sandbar covered at high tide by six and a half feet of
water. The American brigs required ten feet of draft so could only depart via a narrow opening that
the British quickly blockaded. So long as they kept ships outside the harbour, the Americans were
trapped.

FLAMES ON THE FRONTIER

Brock’s victory at Fort Detroit had encouraged many tribes that had earlier been bullied into treaties
by Indiana Governor William Henry Harrison to rise up against the Americans. When the Potawato-
mi laid siege to Fort Wayne, Tecumseh marched from Canada with a large force to turn the uprising
into a general war on the frontier. He expected the British to follow, but only about 500 men under
Major Adam Muir were sent. Even these were committed reluctantly because Prevost believed any
advance across the American border might derail a negotiated peace.



Tecumseh’s forces were formidable but badly scattered. Harrison, meanwhile, commanded a larger,
better equipped army of Kentucky militia and regular troops. With 2,000 men, Harrison broke the
siege of Fort Wayne and the Indian warriors melted into the forests. As winter set in, Indians and
Americans became locked in a vicious frontier battle neither side could win.

Hoping to break the deadlock, Harrison tried to regain Fort Detroit and capture Fort Malden across
the river. With 6,300 men, he marched through bitter winter conditions. To clear the way to Detroit,
Harrison sent Brigadier General James Winchester ahead with 1,000 men. On January 18, 1813,
Winchester’s men drove 50 Canadian militiamen and 100 Indians away from Frenchtown on the
Raisin River. With Detroit just 26 miles distant and believing he owned the field, Winchester failed
to erect any defensive fortifications or send out patrols.

Just before dawn on January 22, the Americans awoke to an attack by 600 redcoats and militia com-
manded by Lieutenant Colonel William Procter and 700 Indian warriors under Tecumseh. This force
had crossed Lake Erie on the ice from Fort Malden during a night march.

LTARBHERE
i)

1"

(i

I

In the ensuing battle, 397 Americans were killed and 536, including Winchester, taken prisoner.
Lacking sufficient soldiers to guard all the prisoners, Procter left 30 of the most seriously wounded
under Indian guard at Frenchtown while he withdrew his force and the other prisoners to Brown-
stown. Soon a group of Indians drunk on captured liquor pushed the guard aside and scalped the
helpless prisoners. When word of these murders reached Washington, the political slogan and rally-
ing cry, “Remember the Raisin River,” was born.

STALEMATE IN WASHINGTON

On December 3, Madison had been re-elected president with a sweeping majority, but he faced a
Congress and Senate opposed to any legislation that would enable him to make war more effectively.
A bill to raise the army from its current 19,000 to 30,000 was stonewalled by demands for more
information. Nor would Congress approve forcing state militias to serve wherever they were sent.
When Secretary of the Treasury Albert Gallatin tabled a series of proposals aimed at financing the
war, Congress defeated them all. Yet, led by Speaker Henry Clay, Congress continued to declare its
determination that the war proceed. Victory just had to be won without much cost to the taxpayer.
The only concession the administration won was a bill authorizing increasing the army by 20,000
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more men to a total strength of about 35,000. These men, however, would not be required to sign on
for the customary five years. Instead, they need agree to only twelve months service. Congress was
gambling on winning the war in a year.
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Desperate for good news, Madison was delighted to report to Congress on February 22 that the navy
had once again won a success. On December 29, Constitution had intercepted the 49-gun Java and
sunk her. But Madison also knew the navy could not alone bring Britain to its knees. There were not
enough ships for America to gain mastery of the seas. The conquest of Canada was to have provided
a bargaining chip that could be exchanged for an honourable peace. But Madison doubted the 1813
campaign season would see his army succeed. A protracted war that the nation could not afford
loomed.

Consequently, when the Russian minister to America came to Madison’s home on March 6 with a
note from Tsar Alexander [ offering to act as peacemaker between American and Britain. the presi-
dent grabbed at the proposal like a drowning man grasping a lifeline. The Russian emperor’s offer
was “humane and enlightened,” he said. And Russia was “the only power in Europe which can com-
mand respect from both France and England.”

'HE TSAR’S PEACE INITIATIVE

Tsar Alexander had first considered playing the role of peacemaker between America and Britain
in September, 1812. This was even as Moscow fell to Napoleon’s Grand Armée and the Russian
people feared his troops might soon be marching through the capital of Saint Petersburg. Alexan-
der, however, was unafraid. He knew the French were badly overextended. Napoleon’s supply lines
were not secure. As the Russians had retreated, they burned crops and food supplies. The French
were currently victorious but were also hungry, exhausted, short on ammunition and increasingly
fewer in number. Winter was closing in and the French were ill prepared to endure its harsh condi-
tions. Alexander expected winter to break the French and he was correct. B y the time his offer to act
as an intermediary reached Madison, the French were gone from Russia. It was also clear that the
French were no longer dominant in Europe. In fact, they were on the retreat and Alexander expected
Napoleon’s full defeat in 1813. His reasons for seeking a peace between America and Britain were
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twofold. First, Alexander wanted to increase his reputation on the world stage. Second, the war
was harming Russian commerce. Alexander had first raised the subject with America’s minister to
Russia, John Quincy Adams, in the fall of 1812. Adams had been intrigued and asked Washington
whether he should participate if the British agreed. The British representative, Lord Cathcart, had
also sought instruction from London.

By February, 1813 it was clear that Britain was winning the war with France and Adams thought it
increasingly impossible that America could prevail on the battlefield. He told one Russian adviser
that Americans were “all too raw and unskilled in war to make much progress in Canada.” The losses
the U.S. Navy had inflicted at sea had only “mortified [Britain’s] national pride, and touched their
point of honor in its tenderest part...and would make them think they must now fight not only for
their honor, but for revenge.”
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In Washington, Madison also realized France was losing its war with Britain. Time was running out
to either prevail on the battlefield or try to negotiate a peace before the war turned too far against
America. Once peace came to Europe, Britain would be free to send massive naval and army rein-
forcement to Canada and any hope of victory would be lost. Also, once the European war ended,
the only remaining argument upon which the declaration of war had been based would disappear.
The orders-in-council were already gone. Impressment would end when the Royal Navy no longer
required large numbers of sailors. Madison wanted to secure a negotiated peace before America was
left fighting a war without cause.

Deciding to immediately send envoys to join Adams in St. Petersburg, Madison selected his trea-
surer, Albert Gallatin, and the Federalist senator from Delaware, James Bayard. Sending one of his
most respected political opponents would demonstrate the sincerity of his peace quest. The two en-
voys sailed for Russia on May 11.

BRITAIN'S HARDENING RESOLVE.

In Britain, the war with America was no longer a sideshow to the war with France. Goulburn had
raised a large number of army reinforcements to send to Canada. Many, however, would have to first
be collected from all points of the Empire and Goulburn could offer no promises on the number who
would arrive in time for the 1813 campaign season. It was possible that Governor General Prevost
would be forced to fight with only the men in hand.
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To force America to divert troops from Canada, Admiral Sir John Warren was ordered to send ships
out from Halifax to raid America’s coastline. By early spring, Warren had blockaded Chesapeake
and Delaware bays, New York City, Charleston, Port Royal, Savannah, and the mouth of the Mis-
sissippi. No American ships were allowed in or out and were seized if possible. Neutral ships were
warned off and any within these harbours were denied exit.

America’s navy was too weak to challenge these blockades, but a good number of its war ships
managed to escape to sea. Others had already been loose before the blockades were established. In
February, the 18-gun sloop Hornet mauled and sunk the British brig Peacock in the south Atlantic.
Spring 1813 found the 32-gun Essex spreading terror among a British whaling fleet operating off the
Galapagos Islands.

The British, meanwhile, launched their first raid within Chesapeake Bay on April 28. Admiral Sir
George Cockburn landed 180 seamen, 200 marines and a small artillery detachment that struck
Frenchtown on the Elk River. After burning a large quantity of military stores and several vessels,
the force escaped with only one man having been wounded. Cockburn went on to destroy an artillery
battery at Havre de Grace five days later and raided Georgetown and Fredericktown on the Sassafras
River on May 5. The British reported never having seen a coast so undefended and Warren increased
Cockburn’s forces by 2,400 men to intensify raiding operations.

On June 1, the Americans attempted to regain the initiative when Captain James Lawrence aboard
Chesapeake challenged Captain Philip Broke of the Shannon to a head-to-head battle outside Boston
harbour. Both ships mounted 38 guns and about the same number of crew. A fierce fight ensued dur-
ing which Lawrence was wounded in the leg by a sniper’s musket ball. Then the two ships collided
and British sailors swarmed the American ship. Lawrence was wounded a second time when a bullet
pierced his abdomen. As Broke led even more British sailors on to Chesapeake, the dying Lawrence
cried, “Don’t give up the ship!” But it was too late, the surviving American officer surrendered.
Broke, too, lay dying along with 23 other British sailors. Another 58 were wounded. The Americans
had lost 61 killed and 85 wounded. Chesapeake was taken to Halifax and Lawrence was buried there
with full military honours.

This naval victory did much to quell public criticism, but it was the raids on American soil that
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were more strategically worthwhile. Raids through June and July spread terror along the American
coastline.

RAIDS ON THE LAKES'

The Americans were also proving capable of launching devastating raids but on the Great Lakes
instead of at sea. On April 27, a 14-ship American squadron carrying 1,700 infantry had struck
the shipbuilding facilities at York. Seriously outnumbered, Major General Roger Sheafe withdrew
his 600 men rather than fight. He also burned an unfinished ship and blew up a large ammunition
magazine. The ensuing explosion injured 250 Americans, 38 of whom died. Angry at their losses,
the Americans looted the town, vandalized property and bullied unarmed citizens. They also burned
the legislative building, Government House and most military barracks. After confiscating large
amounts of military stores, the Americans set sail.

Commodore Isaac Chauncey, who had commanded the naval part of the operation, had once again
proven that his ships controlled Lake Ontario. This positioned the Americans well for land opera-
tions against Niagara Peninsula and even Kingston. At Sackets Harbor, Major General Henry Dear-
born had 4,000 soldiers and it had been part of this force that participated in the York raid. Another
3,000 men were assembled at Buffalo. After the raid on York, Chauncey was to transport the men
at Sackets Harbor to carry out an amphibious assault on Fort George while the troops at Buffalo at-
tacked it by land. On May 25, after Chauncey’s ships subjected the fort to a heavy bombardment, the
British regulars and Canadian militia there withdrew to a new position near Beaver Dams.

The raid on York and the fall of Fort George were serious defeats that left the British soldiers and
Canadian settlers fearing that Niagara Peninsula might be entirely lost.

BRITAIN’S TENUOUS HOLD

In 1813 the thin line of Red defending Canada was stretched to the limit. There were little more than
9,000 troops in all the Canadas and 2,000 of these were provincials considered of dubious quality.
Militia call-ups in May had not yielded the high reporting levels Prevost had hoped for. Most militia-
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men were farmers and it was a difficult choice to don a uniform instead of sowing the seed required
to produce crops necessary to feed their families. The winter just passed had seen food shortages
in some regions. With this year’s campaign season expected to be longer and more extensive than
in 1812, there was much talk of possible famines in Upper Canada if crops went unplanted or har-
vested because the men were off fighting. Many American settlers, who had come to Upper Canada
for cheap land and the security the British offered against Indian wars, packed their bags and drifted
back into the United States.

Everywhere Prevost looked American troops gathered and he had little confidence they could be
held back. In the west, newly promoted Major General Henry Harrison had built a major fort called
Fort Meigs just below the Maumee Rapids to serve as a base. At Presque Isle, Captain Oliver Hazard
Perry continued work on the ships that could challenge British supremacy on Lake Erie the moment
an opportunity to slip past the blockade occurred.

From Ambherstburg, the also newly promoted Brigadier General Henry Procter watched these de-
velopments with growing concern. Procter was caught in a dilemma. He lacked men and supplies
necessary to go on the offensive, but Tecumseh was unwilling to accept a purely defensive strategy.
Without Indian support, the British could never retain the Upper Canadian frontier, so Procter agreed
to a limited operation intended to seize Fort Meigs.

On April 28, Procter loaded 550 regulars, 464 militia, and 63 fencibles aboard two gunboats, six
other vessels, and a flotilla of bateaux and crossed the lake to the mouth of the Maumee River. They
were joined there by Tecumseh and 1,500 warriors. Soon British gun batteries and the gunboats were
pounding the unfinished fort in an attempt to force Harrison's surrender. Harrison was determined to
hold out because reinforcements were on the way. In the early morning hours of May 5, 1,200 Ken-
tucky troops shot the rapids in boats and overran the British gun batteries. Prevost counterattacked
with the 41st Regiment’s regulars supported by Tecumseh’s warriors and broke the Kentucky line.
The Americans suffered 836 casualties in exchange for only 101 British casualties.

Once again some American prisoners were killed and scalped by renegade Indians before Tecumseh
could bring them under control. Procter continued the siege until May 9 when the militiamen left to
sow their crops and he realized it would be impossible to force Harrison to surrender. The withdrawal
left Harrison still threatening the frontier, but he remained on the defensive. Harrison was waiting for
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Perry to finish his ships at Presque Isle. Perry was building two brigs, Lawrence and Niagara. Weigh-
ing 500 tons and mounting two masts with square sails, each was fitted with eighteen 32-pounder
carronades and two long 12-pounder guns. Perry also had eight smaller schooners, some built from
scratch and others, like Caledonia, that had been captured from the British. His biggest problem was
a lack of sailors to crew the vessels. But if he could get past the British blockade of Presque Isle and
onto the lakes with even a few ships, Perry could then support Harrison in an amphibious operation.

PREVOST ATTACKS SACKETS HARBOR

While the Americans had been seizing Fort George on Niagara Peninsula, Prevost had used the op-
portunity of their being at the opposite end of Lake Ontario to assault Sackets Harbor. He hoped to
destroy the shipbuilding facilities and regain control of the lake. With 800 men, Prevost sailed from
Kingston on May 25. Arriving just before nightfall, Prevost decided to keep his men aboard in the
dark, damp holds rather than attack immediately. Come morning, dispirited and weary British troops
landed and were met by 500 American militiamen. After three hours of fighting and with his troops
gaining the upper hand, Prevost suddenly lost his nerve and ordered a retreat. The raid had achieved
nothing, but it succeeded in panicking the Americans into pulling back into Sackets Harbor to de-
fend the new corvette that was under construction. Suddenly the British were again masters of Lake
Ontario.

LAURA SECORD TO THE RESCUE

Unable to move men by ship, Dearborn sent his army marching into Upper Canada. Claiming ill
health, Dearborn directed two other generals to lead the 3,500 troops without specifying which of
them was in charge. Both men were cautious by nature so the advance progressed slowly. On June
5, the Americans arrived at Stoney Creek and encamped for the night. British scouts prowled about
the camp in the night and determined that the two generals had failed to tie their respective forces
together. A hasty attack by Lieutenant Colonel John Harvey and 700 men at 11:30 that night threw
the American camp into chaos.
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Both generals were captured along with about 100 troops. Although British casualties of 214 proved
higher than the American loses of 168, morning found the redcoats holding the field. The Americans
retired to Fort George. Dearborn handed command to Brigadier General John Boyd. Determined to
return to the offensive, Boyd decided to march on the outpost at Beaver Dam. This small outpost
was commanded by Lieutenant James FitzGibbon and meant to protect a settlement of Mohawk and
Caughnawaga Indians. Boyd ordered Lieutenant Colonel Charles Boerstler to take 700 men to over-
run the outpost and then attack the Indian encampment.

Boerstler set out on June 23, advancing through heavy rain as far as Queenston. Here thirty-five-
year-old Laura Secord learned of the American plan and trekked through the night to warn FitzGib-
bon. The lieutenant alerted the Indians and an ambush was set. At nine o’clock the next morning the
Americans struggling up the muddy road were ambushed from behind by 300 Caughnawaga and
100 Mohawks. After three hours of fighting, the demoralized Americans were ready to surrender but
feared being massacred. That was when FitzGibbon and 50 redcoats advanced and the Americans
rushed to be taken under their protection. While the American militiamen were paroled, 462 officers
and regular army troops were taken prisoner.

After this defeat, Dearborn refused to stir again from Fort George. He expected to be attacked by
superior forces at any moment. When a message arrived from Washington relieving him of com-
mand, Dearborn was content to go. Major General James Wilkinson was appointed to replace him.
But the new commander, another Revolutionary War veteran, was in Georgia and did not arrive in
Washington until early August. The summer months of 1813 passed on the Canadian border with the
Americans doing little. A stalemate existed. Nothing had advanced the American cause.

BRITISH DEFEATS ON THE FRONTIER

After Sheafe fled York, Prevost had relieved him and appointed Major General Francis de Rotten-
burg as Upper Canada’s British commander. De Rottenburg pessimistically expected the Americans
to gain control of Lake Ontario. In that event, he planned to withdraw from Niagara Peninsula and
fall back to Kingston. De Rottenburg advised Major General Henry Procter that he would also have
to escape via Lake Huron to Lake Superior. Procter was shocked by this instruction. He immediately
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wrote Prevost to warn that should the British abandon Lake Erie they would lose the support of Te-
cumseh’s confederacy.

Since the failure at Fort Meigs, relations between Procter and Tecumseh had soured. Tecumseh
blamed the defeat on Procter and wanted to attack the fort again or attempt to destroy the ships at
Presque Isle. When the two met to discuss strategy, however, Procter proposed instead attacking Fort
Stephenson on the Sandusky River because it would be easier to capture.

Tecumseh saw no sense in this scheme. At Fort Meigs 2,000 American troops were under command
of Brigadier General Green Clay. Nine miles up the Sandusky River, Harrison had another 2,000
men camped at Seneca Town. Tecumseh had about 3,000 warriors and believed he could defeat ei-
ther American force so long as they were not allowed to come together.

Procter finally agreed to another attempt on Fort Meigs, but he committed just 300 men and a few
guns. On July 25, the British and Tecumseh’s warriors approached Fort Meigs in a vast flotilla of
canoes and boats. Tecumseh had hoped to lure Clay into coming out of the fort, but the American
refused to be drawn. After two fruitless days, Tecumseh agreed to march with Procter on Fort Ste-
phenson. The fort’s garrison consisted of just 160 regulars under Major George Croghan, They had
a single 6-pound gun.

American scouts following the thousands of Indians marching towards Fort Stephenson alerted Har-
rison, who ordered Croghan to withdraw to Seneca Town. Croghan replied that there was not enough
time to retreat and that he had “determined to maintain this place and by heaven we can.” Rather than
facing Tecumseh and his thousands, Croghan ended up under siege by just Procter’s troops and 300
warriors. The rest, including Tecumseh drifted off during the march because they saw no point in the
attack. After shelling the fort for several hours on August 1, Procter attacked. To gain the palisade
walls required entering a deep ditch that surrounded the fort. Once his troops and warriors were in-
side it they were subjected to withering musket fire and blasts of grapeshot from the single cannon.
Unable to scale the walls, the attack crumbled. The warriors broke off first, fleeing into the woods.
Of the 250 British who had gone into the attack, 96 were killed or wounded.

Procter fell back to Amherstburg where he attempted to justify the attack as required to keep the
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[ndians committed to Britain. Prevost slammed him for losing so many men in a pointless operation
and urged him to instead concentrate on working with Lake Erie’s British naval commander, Captain
Robert Barclay, to maintain control of its waters and coastline. This, he said, is what Commodore
James Yeo had done successfully on Lake Ontario.

PROWLING LAKE ONTARIO

Throughout July the British on Lake Ontario had been trying unsuccessfully to draw the Americans
out of Sackets Harbor, yet clearly a fight to decide ownership of the lake was inevitable. Although
the British had six warships of varying classes and well-trained crews that could hold a formation
together, their guns were all carronades— short-ranged cannon that fired heavy shot. The American
ships were a hodgepodge. Ten civilian schooners fitted with cannon and only three corvettes that
were truly warships. Crews were poorly trained and the variety of ships and their sails made it all but
impossible to maintain formation. All the American ships, however, mounted long guns that were
long-ranged and fired lighter shot than a carronade. The Americans hoped to sink the British at a
distance before the carronades came within range to smash their ships with their heavier shot.

The Americans had one other advantage— the most powerful ship on the lake. General Pike was big.
[t had a crew of 300 and mounted 26 guns that fired 24-pound shot. A single broadside could devas-
tate any British ship that came within range. On July 20, General Pike ventured out with the rest of
the fleet following. About 2,000 sailors manned the ships and on board were 2,000 soldiers. Their
intent was to assault the British supply depot at Burlington. Finding the town too well defended, the
Americans again raided York on July 31. After returning the troops to Fort Niagara, the American
fieet turned about to find the British waiting with two corvettes, two brigs, and two large schooners.
After much maneuvering and without either side suffering much damage, the ships were suddenly
caught in a gale at two in the morning of August 8. Two American schooners capsized and were lost.

When the storm abated, the two opponents continued to circle each other while seeking an advan-
tage. Finally two schooners, Growler and Julia, drifted free of the American line and all six British
ships closed and forced their surrender. But the surviving Americans continued to refuse battle, each
side warily circling the other well into September without a decisive action.




DECISION ON LAKE ERIE

Believing the Americans still not ready to sail, the British blockading Presque Isle withdrew from
August 2 to 4 in order to resupply. The Americans seized the moment. Lawrence and Niagara sailed
out on August 5. Facing a shortage of sailors, the British withdrew and set frantically to finishing
construction of the brig Detroit. The Americans, meanwhile, established their fleet at Put-in-Bay,
about 30 miles from Amherstburg and sailed back and forth in front of the town and nearby Fort
Malden to prove their supremacy over the lake. On September 9, the British decided the time to
act had come and emerged with the brigs Detroit, Queen Charlotte, and Lady Prevost, and three
schooners. Plagued by weak winds that made movement sluggish, the two forces were soon locked
in battle. The U.S. flagship, Lawrence, was eventually so badly shot up that the fleet commander
escaped by rowboat to Niagara and the surviving crew surrendered.

Aboard Detroit, the British commander had been wounded in the leg. Then a volley of canister
inflicted a massive shoulder wound that knocked him unconscious just as Queen Charlotte col-
lided with Detroit and the rigging of the two ships became entangled. A devastating broadside from
Niagara raked both ships. Both Detroit and Queen Charlotte then surrendered, as did Lady Prevost
and one of the schooners. The other two British ships attempted to flee but were soon also captured.
Captain Oliver Hazard Perry sent a signal, announcing the victory. “We have met the enemy and they
are ours,” it read.

RETREAT FROM LAKE ERIE

The British naval defeat on Lake Erie was the last straw for Procter. He immediately set about orga-
nizing a full retreat up the Thames River and overland to Niagara Peninsula. On September 18, he
explained the need to flee to Tecumseh and other chiefs at Fort Malden. “Listen, father!” Tecumseh
pleaded. “The Americans have not yet defeated us by land...we therefore wish to remain here, and
fight our enemy, should they make their appearance. If they defeat us, we will then retreat.”

But Procter would not listen. Even though he had 900 troops defending the formidable Fort Malden
and about 1.500 confederacy warriors in support, Procter considered the battle lost. In an attempt
to maintain the alliance with Tecumseh, however, he proposed a retreat to the lower Thames. Here
they would turn to fight. Reluctantly, Tecumseh and the other chiefs agreed to accompany Procter’s
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men. About 1,200 warriors joined the march that began on September 26 after both Fort Detroit and
Fort Malden were burned. Many Canadian settlers, fearing the Americans, joined the retreat. A great
line of carts, wagons, cattle, and horses were soon on the move. After ten days the column reached
the village of Moravian Town, about 70 miles from Detroit, and paused. Procter believed the Ameri-
cans were hot on his heels. But it was only on October 2 that Major General Harrison started up the
Thames with 3,500 men, including 1,500 Kentucky horsemen under Lieutenant Colonel Richard M.
Johnson.

Three days later the Americans came up against Procter’s defensive line deployed across a 1,000-foot-
wide gap of open ground bordered on one side by the river and on the other by swamp. His redcoats
stood in one continuous line while Tecumseh’s warriors waited in the woods of the swamp. The
41st Regiment of Foot was dispirited, lacked faith in Procter, and had only the ammunition in their
pouches. Rather than advance his infantry towards the waiting British, Harrison unleashed Johnson’s
Kentuckians. Galloping forward and screaming, “Remember the Raisin River,” the horsemen swept
through the single volley that the British were able to fire before they crashed into the line of men.
Procter and his staff fled the field and the British took to their heels. Johnson wheeled his horsemen
into the swamp and soon Kentuckians and Tecumseh’s warriors were locked in a vicious battle.
Johnson was shot five times, but somehow survived.

At first Tecumseh could be heard shouting and rallying his warriors. Then his voice was heard no
more. Those warriors who saw him fall, took flight and with them went the rest of the confederacy.
Moravian Town was a disastrous defeat for the British and even more so for the Indian confederacy.
The British lost 28 officers and 606 men either killed or captured in exchange for only 7 American
dead and 22 wounded. The Indians left only 33 dead, including Tecumseh. But his body was later

recovered and removed to a secret burial place.
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Accompanied by many civilians, about 400 warriors and his 246 British soldiers, Procter continued
to retreat. Harrison let him go and returned to Detroit. On October 17, Harrison left for Washington.
His military career was soon over. Upon reaching the British lines at Burlington Heights on Niagara
Peninsula, Procter was sopn ordered back to England to face court martial. For the Indian confed-
eracy, the defeat spelled the end of hopes that they could retain control of the Ohio and Wabash val-
leys. Without Tecumseh, there was nobody capable of keeping all the many tribal nations aligned.
Some continued to fight the Americans while others attempted neutrality.

BATTLE OF CHATEAUGUAY

Autumn brought 1813’s most concerted effort at an American invasion of Canada. This time the op-
eration was directed at Lower Canada, with Montreal the desired prize. It was a two-pronged plan,
one against Kingston and the other using Lake Champlain as a route of approach. Both forces would
link up outside Montreal to take it. The Kingston attack by a 7,300-strong force commanded by
Major General James Wilkinson was intended to pin down the majority of the British forces, while
Major General Wade Hampton drove up the Lake Champlain route with 5,500 men.

Wilkinson and Hampton hated each other and made no attempt to coordinate their operations. When
Wilkinson fell ill, his army remained at Sackets Harbor awaiting his recovery. Hampton, finding
the Lake Champlain route too difficult, shifted his army 40 miles west to follow the Chateauguay
River to the St. Lawrence. Arriving at the Canadian border in late September, Hampton settled down
‘0 wait for Wilkinson’s arrival. On October 18, word arrived that Wilkinson was on the march.
Hampton headed for the mouth of the Chateauguay on October 21. As he crossed the border, 1,500
militiamen invoked their right to not fight outside the United States. Hampton still had 4,000 men.
Facing him were 1,600 men under command of Lieutenant Colonel Charles-Michel d’Irumberry de
Salaberry. His force was a mix of French-Canadian regulars known as Fencibles or Voltigeurs, mili-
tia, and native warriors. They erected a stout barricade and abattis system across a narrow front that
was flanked by the river on one side and a marshy thicket on the other. De Salabarry posted 350 men
behind this barrier. Behind this first position, de Salabarry established four more defensive lines. He
also had troops out on either flank.

Hampton split his force in two for the attack . Colonel Robert Purdy was sent with 1,500 men to try
flanking the Canadians by advancing along the river’s southern bank. His main body, commanded
by General George Izard, then headed for the barricade. At 2:00 in the afternoon of October 26,
de Salabarry set the battle into motion by coolly raising a musket and shooting down a mounted
American officer. Then, standing on a stump that exposed him to American fire, he directed his
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men in throwing out a steady rate of fire that drove most of the enemy to hide behind trees or logs
rather than charge the outnumbered Canadians. For two hours the battle before the barricade raged
while Purdy’s men ineffectually tried to get behind the position on the south bank. When they finally
reached a workable ford, the Americans were attacked by two companies of French-Canadian militia
and a small contingent of cavalry. Purdy’s men broke and ran. Seeing these troops fleeing, those in
front of the barrier also withdrew. Hampton’s part in the invasion of Canada was over despite his
having lost only 50 men. The Canadians suffered only 5 men killed and 16 wounded. Of the battle,
de Salabarry wrote, “I have won a victory mounted on a wooden horse.”

CRYSLER’S FARM

Meanwhile Wilkinson, having bypassed Kingston, was advancing on Montreal with 8,000 men
aboard 300 small vessels. Plagued by snowstorms and gales, the fleet struggled through the Thou-
sand Islands until the weather cleared on November 5 and it entered the St. Lawrence River. In
pursuit by boat were about 600 British regulars from Kingston commanded by Lieutenant Colonel
Joseph Morrison. At Prescott, Fort Wellington blocked Wilkinson's passage. He decided to march
around the fort and re-embark on the vessels, which would be floated past at night, in order to avoid
a fight. This plan succeeded and the Americans were soon in sight of Long Sault Rapids, the first of a
series that ran unbroken to Montreal. On the night of November 10-11, the pursuing force threatened
the American rear. Morrison established his headquarters in John Crysler’s farmhouse. Reinforced
by local militia, some natives, and men from Fort Wellington, he had about 900 soldiers, principally
the 49th and 89th regiments. Morrison also had a small number of gunboats able to bring the tail of
Wilkinson’s armada under fire.

From Crysler’s farmhouse, a road ran virtually straight from the riverbank across an open field to
Blackash Swamp, about half a mile inland. Log fences bordering the road provided stout cover for
Morrison’s troops. Covering his left flank in the woods beside the swamp, Morrison deployed a
screen of Indians and militia. Beyond the fence line, a large wheat field gave way to a ploughed field,
followed by two gullies and a ravine. Between the two gullies, a small British force composed of
two companies of the 49th Regiment and three 89th Regiment companies under Lieutenant Colonel
Thomas Pearson cut the road and served to funnel the Americans into fields fronting Morrison’s
defensive line.
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Wilkinson had no choice on November 12 but to meet this threat to his rear. So he split his force,
assigning 2,000 regulars under Major General John Boyd to deal with Morrison while keeping the
rest with him in front of the rapids. Wilkinson was ill, bed ridden and unable to oversee the action.

Boyd advanced two brigaﬁes in three columns. The first brigade slogged across the open muddy field
under rainy skies. They easily pushed in the screen of British skirmishers until the main line raked
the advancing Americans with musket fire. Boyd moved the second brigade forward with one sup-
porting cannon to reinforce the wavering first brigade. The cannon ripped holes in the British line,
but it held, and both sides locked in a brisk musketry exchange.

Sensing the Americans were tiring, Morrison ordered Pearson to mount a bayonet charge against
the guns. The veteran soldiers surged forward, and as the companies of the 89th fought off a cavalry
attempt to block them, the 49th captured the cannon, and forced Boyd’s brigades from the field. Mor-
rison’s casualties were 22 killed, 148 wounded, and 9 missing—approximately a fifth of his entire
force. The Americans lost 102 killed, 237 wounded and more than 100 taken prisoner.

His line of retreat cut, Wilkinson’s remaining force shot the rapids at dawn on November 13. But,
learning that Hampton had retreated, he decided against proceeding to Montreal. Instead, he aban-
doned most of the boats and travelled cross country to the American border to take up winter quarters
at French Mills on the Salmon River. This concluded American offensive action for 1813.

AMERICAN REVERSES IN THE NIAGARA PENINSULA

To bolster his Montreal invasion force, Wilkinson had stripped the American contingent on Niagara
Peninsula. This allowed the British to march a small force toward Fort George, which prompted
the Americans there to abandon it and retreat across the river to Fort Niagara. Before doing so on
December 10, however, they evicted Newark’s 400 residents and burned the town. This wanton de-
struction embittered Canadians, who demanded retribution.

After reoccupying Fort George, 550 British regulars led by Colonel John Murray crossed the Ni-
agara River on December 19 and surprised the Fort Niagara garrison. The fort fell quickly with 67
Americans killed and 11 wounded, in exchange for only 5 British killed and 3 wounded. Another
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344 Americans were taken prisoner and only 20 escaped. Meanwhile, another British and Indian
force commanded by Major General Phineas Riall crossed the river at Five Mile Meadows and then,
proceeding southwards, burned Manchester, Fort Schlosser and Buffalo. By year’s end, the entire
Niagara frontier on the fﬁmcrican side was a scene of desolation.

Everyone involved in the December fighting noted the war had taken on a new shape. Scalping was
common, private property looted without regard to the hardship caused civilians, buildings similarly
burned. There were fewer prisoners. Soldiers, militiamen, and Indians fought to the death. The man-
ner in which the fighting of 1813 closed portended the way of the war in the year to follow.

RUSSIAN ARBITRATION DEAD END

The failed campaign against Montreal caused consternation in Washington. President Madison,
Speaker Clay, and most politicians had expected a great victory. Support for the war became shakier
than ever.

[nternational events left no reason to expect the British to incline towards negotiation. Napoleon’s
army had been mauled in October at Leipzig by a coalition force of Austrian, Russian, Prussian, and
Swedish troops. The French lost 68,000 men over three days and were driven out of all Europe east
of the Rhine. Napoleon’s continental empire was finished. Tsar Alexander I had taken to the field
with his army. Determined to bring Napoleon down, he had lost interest in mediating between Brit-
ain the United States.

This had been evident from the moment Albert Gallatin and James Bayard had arrived in St. Peters-
burg on July 21 after a long voyage. By August 1, Russian officials were warning the two men that
Britain felt the Americans had too many demands and no third party could intervene successfully. If
the British had no interest in a mediated settlement there was nothing Russia could do.

By now Gallatin was determined to explore every avenue to get negotiations going. He opened
secret correspondence that passed through a sympathetic English banker in London to Viscount
Castlereagh. While Gallatin signed his letters, Castlereagh dictated responses through the English
banker, Alexander Baring. Gallatin made it clear that he, Bayard and John Quincy Adams were only
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empowered to participate in an arbitration led by Russia. They could not directly negotiate with Brit-
ish representatives. After several exchanges that produced no result, Baring’s response in an October
12 letter clearly confirmed that it was really Castlereagh and not the banker writing. “We wish for
peace,” he wrote. “The pressure of war has no object to it; it is expensive, and we want to carry our
efforts elsewhere. Our desire of peace, therefore, cannot be doubted and you can rely on it.” If the
Americans would negotiate directly with Britain, “I think you would soon complete the work of
peace without the help or hindrance of a mediator.”

This was enough encouragement for Gallatin. On October 18, Gallatin sent his private secretary,
George Dallas, to London to discreetly pursue how a direct negotiation could begin. With winter set-
ting in, Russia became ice bound on November 1. Leaving by ship was no longer possible. Finally,
as it was clear the Russian initiative would not proceed, Gallatin and Bayard decided to leave by
horse-drawn sleigh on an overland trek to Amsterdam. From there they would either take ship back
to America or be positioned to enter into negotiations with the British. The two men left at the end
of January, 1814. Adams remained as America’s representative to Russia.

CASTLEREAGH PROPOSES DIRECT NEGOTIATIONS

On December 30, 1813, the British schooner Bramble sailed into Annapolis under a flag of truce.
Aboard was a letter from Castlercagh that reached Secretary of State James Monroe as the clock
struck midnight. The British government was willing to enter into direct peace talks with the United
States, Castlereagh wrote. American commissioners would be guaranteed safe passage to any desti-
nation in Europe for the talks to occur.

While President Madison and Monroe maintained the impression they were determined to continue
the war, both men leapt at the offer. Monroe’s reply was carried away by Bramble on January 5,
1814. “I am accordingly instructed to make known to your lordship...that the President accedes to
his proposition.” Two days later, Monroe reported the news to Congress and asked it to endorse John
Quincy Adams, James Bayard, Henry Clay and Jonathan Russell as envoys. Albert Gallatin was
added to the list on February 8. Adams was appointed chair.

Henry Clay
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The appointment of the man most responsible for drawing the country into the war as a negotiator
alarmed the Federalists. But Clay was presented as a counterweight to Bayard, who was considered
overly pro-British. Republicans, particularly those from the American frontier, welcomed Clay's
participation because they believed he would sign no treaty that failed to uphold American honour
or prohibited Canada’s eventual annexation. Still believing that it was the British who were stirring
up the Indians, Westerners were determined that Canada must be taken.

Despite having brought about the war, Clay now equally and without apology was determined to
hold centre stage in negotiating an armistice. His intention was to win through a treaty everything
America had desired but been unable to achieve by war. Clay and Russell sailed for Gothenburg,
Sweden on February 23. Madison thought Sweden a good location for the negotiations.

At the same time as the president dispatched his negotiation team, Madison made it clear America
must continue the war. He would have preferred a defensive war. Congress made sure that was all
America could wage. It rejected a call to increase the army by 55,000 men through conscription.
A proposed bill to raise $45.3 million to cover naval and army costs for a year was slashed to $25
million.

BRITISH RESPONSES

Prospects for the defence of Canada had never been brighter. But Governor Prevost remained gloomy.
Promised reinforcements, he countered that these would likely not arrive until the campaign season
was over. His British regulars and Canadian Voltigeurs numbered about 900 officers and 15,000 oth-
er ranks. But many were sick and exhausted by the hard campaign of 1813. Even learning that Paris
had fallen on March 31, followed six days later by Napoleon’s abdication, failed to raise his spirits.
With Europe finally at peace, the British planned to send thousands of veteran troops to Canada.
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The British government also intended to settle its mastery over the Great Lakes. Vice-Admiral Sir
Alexander Cochrane arrived in Halifax on April 1 and took over all naval operations in the western
hemisphere. Unlike Prevost, Cochrane was offensively minded. “I have it much at heart to give them
a complete drubbing before peace is made,” he said of the Americans.




On April 25, he ordered the entire U.S. coastline blockaded. Suddenly British ships seemed to be
everywhere along the coast. Although some of America’s small warships managed to escape to sea
and were successful at capturing the occasional British merchant, there was no question that the seas
belonged to the Royal Navy.

Cochrane turned to the Great Lakes with similar resolve. About 250 seamen were provided to crew
two new frigates, the 58-gun Prince Regent and the 43-gun Princess Charlotte, being built at Kings-
ton. During the winter, the British had also floated the 23-gun Wolfe. Cochrane was confident these
new ships in concert with five from the original fleet would be able to win Lake Ontario. Another 600
sailors and dockyard workers sent to Kingston in early spring added to British strength.

The Americans had also been busy at Sackets Harbor through the winter, but construction had been
slow. By February they had just two brigs, Jefferson and Jones, near completion. Construction then
began on the larger frigate, Superior. When Superior was complete, the Americans would match the
British in having eight ships on the lake. But boast about 800 more sailors and a third more firepower.

SEESAW ON LAKE ONTARIO

By May the British had 1,517 men and eight ships ready. The sailors also had a willing ally in Lieu-
tenant General Sir Gordon Drummond and a joint army-navy operation against Fort Oswego was

planned. Spies reported the fort was held by only 290 regulars and the guns intended for Superior
were temporarily being stored there.

On May 6, with ships shelling the fort, Drummond landed 750 redcoats, marines, and sailors. The

fort fell after a sharp action but only seven long guns were found, as the rest had not yet arrived.
These guns and 2 400 barrels of provisions were catried off.

Learning that the other guns for Superior had arrived at Oswego Falls, the British blockaded Sackets
Harbor with five ships constantly on station to prevent their delivery. At Oswego Falls, Master Com-
mandant Melancthon Woolsey waited with 33 cannon for an opportunity to slip in small boats past
the blockade. On the night of May 28-29 he made the attempt with 19 boats. One became separated
from the party, was taken by the British, and its crew betrayed the plan. An attempt to intercept the
boats failed, however, and Woolsey succeeded in getting the guns through. As the guns were loaded
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onto Superior, the balance on Lake Ontario again came into doubt and the British had to husband
their fleet to be ready for whatever campaign Prevost might have in mind.

THE AMERICAN PLAN

Not until April 30 did the Americans come up with a plan for attacking Canada. As the army could
muster barely 14,000 men, Secretary of War John Armstrong proposed that Major General Jacob
Brown launch an amphibious attack on Fort Erie to capture Burlington Heights and then York. This
would cut the British off from the Indians to the west and isolate Niagara Peninsula.

Success depended on gaining control of Lake Ontario, so the plan was put on hold until Superior was
ready. In the meantime, Brown was authorized to win a toehold on Niagara Peninsula by capturing
Fort Erie and the bridge over Chippewa Creek. near Niagara Falls. Thereafter, he could seize Fort
George and then march on Burlington Heights and York. Once these all fell the American campaign
in the Canadas would be finished.
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NEGOTIATE AND MAKE WAR

In Europe, British and American envoys were slowly moving towards negotiations. The British ap-
pointed Vice-Admiral James Gambier to lead its delegation. An expert in maritime and naval law,
William Adams, also joined the commission. Although Gambier was the chair, real power lay with
the third member— Colonial Office Undersecretary Henry Goulburn. All three men were under strict
instruction to agree to nothing without it first being approved by Castlereagh and other senior cabinet
ministers.

After much discussion, it was decided the negotiations would be held in the ancient Belgian city of
Ghent. Beginning on June 24, the Americans and British started arriving. While matters of protocol
and formality dominated initial discussions that began in July, the British were also preparing to send
13,000 veteran troops to Canada in a series of convoys that would see them all delivered to Quebec
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by year’s end. The British government advised Prevost that he was to carry the war onto American
soil and cease steering a purely defensive course.

CHIPPEWA

On July 3, Major General Brown crossed the Niagara with 3 400 men. Of these 2,400 were regulars
divided into two brigades. The rest consisted of more than 300 artillerymen, and 600 Pennsylvania
volunteers. Brown also had about 600 friendly Indians. Defending Niagara Peninsula were only
2,500 British troops scattered among several garrisons. The Americans were better trained than be-
fore due to one of the brigade commanders, Brigadier General Winfield Scott. Having been part of
several previous defeats, Scott had trained the regulars hard through the winter. The result was the
men were better soldiers and also had higher morale than previously.

Brown’s Indians seized Fort Erie, taking its 137-man garrison prisoner. At sunrise the following
day, the Americans marched from Fort Erie toward Chippewa. British scouts skirmished with the
advance guard and damaged bridges to slow the Americans, but could not stop them. That evening
the Americans camped on the south bank of Street’s Creek and Scott decided the troops should enjoy
a July 4 dinner. There was no expectation that the British would attack. Festivities were just begin-
ning when scouts reported that the British had crossed the Chippewa River and were coming on fast.

Major General Phineas Riall had just 1,500 regulars and 300 militia and Indians under command,
but he expected the usual American disorganization would result in a rapid retreat. Instead, Scott’s
brigade moved to meet him. Standing with backs to the river, Scott’s men formed a long firing line
identical to that favoured by the British. Riall’s men were bunched up in column along the road. As
the Americans prepared to fire, Riall shouted, “Those are regulars, by God!”

The Americans loosed a deadly volley and Riall’s redcoats broke. The British lost 148 killed, 22
wounded, and 46 taken prisoner. American casualties were higher despite their advantage on the
field. They had 60 killed and 240 either wounded or gone missing.

Riall withdrew to Fort George with the Americans following as far as Queenston. Here they paused
on July 10 to fortify the heights. Brown was waiting on the navy to arrive with supplies and also
to bombard Fort George. The American commander, Commodore Isaac Chauncey, however, had
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lost his nerve and refused to venture from Sackets Harbor for fear of leaving it exposed to attack.
Knowing the British were being reinforced daily, Brown withdrew on July 24 to the south bank of
the Chippewa.

LUNDY'S LANE

On July 25, Lieutenant Colonel Thomas Pearson and a 1,000-man advance guard of British regu-
lars set up position on top of a hill where Lundy’s Lane intersected the road paralleling the Niagara
River. By noon the British force had grown to 1,600 men and another 1,200 regulars and militia with
two 6-pound guns were on the way from Burlington.

Brown ordered an attack, and, at about four in the afternoon, Scott’s brigade approached Lundy’s
Lane. His force consisted of 1,072 men. A ribbon of scarlet lay unfurled across an open plain and the
hill. Scott put in a hard attack that initially pushed back the British left flank. Badly wounded, Riall
was taken prisoner. As twilight set in, the fighting was at close quarters all along the line. By nine
o’clock Scott had only 600 men, but he had been reinforced by the entire American force. Slowly the
British line began to give way until it was reinforced by the 1,200 men from Burlington.

In darkness, the fighting raged on. Cannon changed hands, men fired muskets at point-blank range.
Scott was bleeding from a musket ball that shattered his left shoulder joint. Brown was shot in the
right thigh and then stunned when a spent cannonball struck him. Brigadier General Eleazar Ripley
took command of the Americans and ordered a retreat.

It was the war’s bloodiest engagement with 171 American dead, 572 wounded, and 110 missing.
British casualties numbered 84 killed, 559 wounded, 193 missing, and 42 taken prisoner. The Ameri-
cans fell back to Fort Erie and braced to face a siege.

On August 1, Chauncey finally sortied from Sackets Harbor aboard Superior and blockaded the
British fleet at Kingston. Declaring America now master of Lake Ontario, he spurned all criticism
that it was an empty victory because the army was no longer capable of offensive action. Forced
1o reinforce Niagara Peninsula by overland routes rather than ships on the lake, Drummond did not
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feel his forces were strong enough to attack Fort Erie until the night of August 14-15. Attempting
to gain surprise in the dark, the British troops became badly disorganized and the attack collapsed
in disaster with 57 dead. 309 wounded, and 539 missing or taken prisoner. The Americans suffered
only 84 casualties.

The siege continued through to September 21 when Drummond finally ordered a retreat to Chip-
pewa. He was sick and so too were most of his men.

At the same time, Major General George Izard had arrived at Fort George from Lake Champlain
with 3.500 men to boost the Americans to 6,300. This was the strongest and undoubtedly most ef-
ficient force the United States had yet deployed inside Canada. Izard set out on September 28 to take
Fort George.

Once again Chauncey was expected to support the attack with his fleet. This expectation came to
nothing, however, when the British sailed out the mighty 120-gun St. Lawrence from Kingston.
Chauncey took one look and fled to Sackets Harbor, ceding control of Lake Ontario. Izard’s troops
straggled back to Fort Erie. On November 5, he blew up the fort and retreated across the border to
Buffalo. America’s last campaign against Canada was over.

WASHINGTON IN FLAMES

While the Americans had been concentrated on attacking Niagara Peninsula, Vice-Admiral Co-
chrane had taken the war to America with an amphibious operation into Chesapeake Bay. His objec-
tives were no less than Washington and also Baltimore. On August 18, a large British fleet entered
the bay with 4.000 regulars under command of Major General Robert Ross. Half of these men were
veterans of the European war, as was Ross. Having never believed Washington or Baltimore could
be seriously threatened, the Americans were caught flat-footed. On August 24, the British reached
Bladensburg and were within five miles of Washington. Facing them was a line of 7,000 Americans,
but only 1,000 were regulars.



The British fired a volley of Congreve rockets—iron missiles loaded with 32-pound explosive charg-
es that spewed a stream of flame in their wake —over the heads of the Americans and the line crum-
bled. The British dubbed the easy win and subsequent pursuit the Bladensburg Races. Washington
fell virtually without a fight.

Unlike the Americans at York, the British were under orders to burn only government buildings. Sev-
eral private residences, including that of Albert Gallatin, were also burned in error. Cochrane person-
ally wanted the office of the National Intelligencer set afire because the paper had directly scorned
him in a number of issues. Beseeched by several women who feared the flames would spread to their
adjacent homes, Cochrane instead ordered the building’s contents ransacked and the printing press
smashed. They also destroyed thousands of tons of military stores, including 200 cannon,




THE STAND AT BALTIMORE

On September 11, the British attacked Baltimore with a joint operation conducted on land and by sea.
The army advancing by land was ambushed by 3,200 Americans and Ross was mortally wounded.
Cochrane ordered the troops to hold in place while he attempted bombard the forts protecting Balti-
more’s harbour into submission. Over a twenty-four-hour period, the bombardment continued with
more than 1.500 rounds being fired. Aboard a ship, American lawyer Francis Scott Key scribbled
a poem while watching the shelling and observing the flag still flying over Fort McHenry even as
Congreve rockets whizzed overhead and mortar bombs exploded in airbursts that spewed shrapnel
into the fort. In 1931, Congress would declare the poem, “The Star Spangled Banner,” America’s
national anthem.

Shortly after dawn on September 14, the British lifted the siege. Americans considered that Balti-
more’s stand offset the Washington calamity. The British deemed it a modest setback. Far graver was
the Lake Champlain failure, where the British suffered a stunning defeat in the final chapter of the
1814 campaign.

PREVOST’'S NERVES

In early September, Prevost set out reluctantly on an operation intended to gain entrance to the Hud-
son Valley and cut New England off from the rest of the United States. Along with the successes be-
ing won on the coast, this would almost certainly force New England’s surrender to Britain indepen-
dent of the American government. On July 11, the British had captured Eastport on Moose Island.
This gave them control of Passamaqguoddy Bay, quickly followed by seizing all of Maine from New
Brunswick to Penobscot Bay. This positioned the British to declare that the new boundary between
America and the Canadas was the Penobscot River.

Prevost was supposed to be capitalizing on these gains with an advance into the virtually unguarded
Lake Champlain route. When Major General George [zard had moved 4,000 men from here to re-
inforce the doomed Niagara Peninsula campaign, he left behind only 3,000 regulars and militia to
defend this vital gateway to New England. Brigadier General Alexander Macomb considered only
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half of these men fit for duty. The rest were sick. raw recruits, or New York militia that Macomb
didn’t trust to fight.

On September 1, Prevost crossed into America with 10.000 men. Two-thirds were veterans of the
Napoleon war. Prevost was anxious, considering that American control of the lake was a critical
handicap. The American fleet consisted of the 26-gun flagship Saratoga, the 20-gun Eagle, a schoo-
ner, two sloops, and 12 gunboats, The British, however, were ready to challenge American domi-
nance with a 36-gun ship captured from the French and named Confiance.

By September 5, Prevost’s army was eight miles from Plattsburgh. The next day the British cau-
tiously probed its outskirts. Unable to locate the American defences, however, Prevost did not make
an all-out attack. Despite the presence of several British gunboats on the lake next to his troops,
Prevost could see American ships nearby and so became increasin gly cautious.

Prevost insisted on winning control of the lake before any further advance by land. Confiance was
not ready for battle because its crew were soldiers being re-trained as sailors, but on September 11
an attempt was made to ambush Saratoga. The British 16-gun brig Linnet dropped anchor beside
Eagle with the 11-gun Chubb supporting. The 10-gun Finch and most of the British gunboats sawed
off against the 17-gun Ticonderoga and 7-gun Preble.

Confiance slammed Saratoga with a heavy broadside that killed the British commander. Finch ran
aground and struck its colours while Chubb was sent drifting out of control after being smashed by
fire from Eagle and soon captured.
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The crew on Confiance was unable to match the seamanship of the Americans on Saratoga and soon
struck its colours after being battered by repeated broadsides. Linnet also struck. The American
mastery of the lake was indisputable. Having only just begun an attack on Plattsburgh when the lake
battle suddenly ended, Prevost saw the surrendered or wrecked British vessels and his nerve totally
failed. Prevost led his demoralized army back to Canada, crossing the border on September 14.
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THE PEACE OF CHRISTMAS EVE

Whether the war continued into 1815 now rested on discussions between eight men in Ghent. These
had started badly in August. Both sides came to the table demanding concessions while surrender-
ing little themselves. The British were unwilling to abolish impressment. A declared breaking point,
however, was their insistence that an Indian territory in the west be established that neither the Brit-
ish nor the Americans would violate by trying to purchase, conquer, or negotiate the Indians into
surrendering. This would secure Upper Canada from renewed attacks by America and also bring an
end to the wars between the Indians and the United States.

The Americans were horrified by the idea. They had no instructions to negotiate anything about the
Indians. It was also unthinkable that the continued westward expansion of the United States could
be checked. Indians were savages. They had no concept of land ownership. America’s destiny lay
in extending its boundaries across the continent from sea to sea. Perhaps Canada would not be part
of that extension, but the rest of North America would be American. As for the Indians, they were
destined to be absorbed in that expansion or eliminated.

America, the British argued, must also maintain no naval presence on the Great Lakes nor have forts
along their southern shores. Those forts already existing needed to be dismantled and abandoned.
The Americans could not imagine Washington accepting such a demand.

By September, both parties considered the negotiation bound to fail and were preparing to leave
Ghent. Goulburn wrote to London: “I do not deem it possible to conclude a good peace now —as |
cannot consider that a good peace...leaves the Indians to a dependence on the liberal policy of the
United States.”

In London, however, both Castlereagh and Prime Minister Liverpool were having second thoughts
over the hard British negotiating line. The nation was weary after many years of war. Surely some
minor concessions could be made to bring the Americans to agree to peace. At the same time, Presi-
dent Madison and his administration were equally desperate to end the war. But how to conclude a
peace remained elusive as the talks dragged on into November.
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On November 10, John Quincy Adams suddenly realized how peace could be agreed. Before the
war, relations between Britain and America had been uneasy but tolerable. This was particularly so
if one ignored the “outrages” of impressment and the orders-in-council. Both were no longer issues.
Europe was at peace, S0 impressment was no longer required. And the orders had been repealed in
1812.

So why not, Adams suggested, simply “conclude the peace on the footing of the state before the war,
applied to all the subjects of dispute between the two countries, leaving all the rest for future and
pacific negotiations?” End the war. Then negotiate any outstanding disagreements. When the other
American commissioners said they had no authority to make such a peace, Adams said it would be
on his head. The proposal offered the only possible way to a treaty.

This proposal was passed to the British commissioners along with a proposed treaty that contained
many items the Americans knew would be unacceptable. “We shall have no peace with America
unless we acceded to their proposition of placing things...as they stood when war was declared to
which I presume we are not ready to accede,” Goulburn wrote to London. Goulburn was wrong. The
British government was quite happy to agree to such a peace.

As November gave way to December the negotiations continued with each side quibbling over mi-
nor details. But it was clear that the intention was to finalize a treaty rather than break off discussions
and continue the war into 1815. Such matters as the British possession of part of Maine and what was
to become of that were set aside for later negotiation after the peace was concluded. As for the Indian
confederacy and creation of a protected territory from it, the British dropped this demand. The Indi-
ans would be left to their fate. It was a bitter pill for Goulburn to swallow, for he believed it meant
they would be wiped out by American expansion. They had been loyal allies and he considered the
British were betraying them.

On December 24, Christmas Eve, all eight commissioners signed a treaty that effectively ended the
war by returning North America to the status quo that had existed before the war. “We lose no terri-
tory, I think no honor,” Henry Clay wrote. The “conditions of the peace certainly reflect no dishonor
on us,” the man who had pushed America into the war added in conclusion. Honour had been pre-
served and that sufficed.




BATTLE OF NEW ORLEANS

The treaty was delivered to London within two days of their signing. But there was no rapid means
of communicating news of the peace to North America. That depended on the winds that powered
sailing ships across the Atlantic. To allow time for the treaty to reach Washington, its terms would
stand for four months. If President Madison had not signed the treaty before that deadline elapsed,
the treaty would be nullified and the war continued. Nobody in North America had the slightest idea
that a peace treaty had been signed. So the war ground on with the British attacking New Orleans.
Vice-Admiral Cochrane arrived off the town with 6,000 troops on December 8. Between the coast
and New Orleans lay miles of swamps and bayous.

[t took until January 8, 1815 for the British to work their way inland to threaten the town. The British
had 4,400 men under Major General Sir Edward Pakenham while 4,500 Americans commanded by
Major General Andrew Jackson faced them. The British were regulars. Jackson’s force was made up
of a mix of regulars, Kentucky and Tennessee volunteers, Creoles, freed slaves and a motley crew of
Baratarian pirates led by Jean Lafitte.

At daybreak, the British advanced across open sugar-beet fieclds and came under fire from American
naval guns mounted in bastions on either flank. Then the men manning cannon and muskets behind a
barrier to their front opened fire. Pakenham was killed, most of the senior officers badly or mortally
wounded. The British attack crumbled. It was a staggering defeat - 291 were dead, 1.262 wounded,
and 484 missing. Jackson’s men had lost a trifling 13 dead, 39 wounded and 19 missing.
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The Americans had won a decisive victory but one that could not affect the outcome of a war alread y
settled by treaty.

News of the victory at New Orleans reached Washington by overland courier on February 5. Nine
days later a ship from Ghent arrived in New York bearing the treaty. On February 17, President
Madison signed it into law. Two years and eight months after it began, the war of 1812 was at an end.

HONOUR PRESERVED

Once the war ended, the question became whether it was a good peace. Most Americans thought so.
They had lost nothing. The victory at New Orleans allowed the idea to take root that America had
won the war’s decisive battle. That was not the case, but the myth persists. The Indian confederacy
was doomed. Within three years all the continent south of the 49th parallel and east of the Missis-
sippi, save a fragment of Spanish Florida, had been granted statehood or territorial status. Settlers.
gold prospectors, buffalo hunters, fortune seekers, and freebooters of all kinds had pushed outward
to the Missouri River and well beyond by the end of the decade.
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The Indian nations fled before this undeclared invasion as refugees, moved to assigned reservations
or faced slaughter by the army. This pattern would continue until Americans declared the west won.
Only a remnant of the peoples from whom a continent was taken survived.

With territorial expansion came a massive economic boom commercially and industrially in the north
and agriculturally in the southern states. The War of 1812 was seen as having provided America with
a clear vision of itself as the one nation, indivisible under God that the forefathers had intended. The
Civil War shattered this vision as southern and northern states fought each other in the bloodiest war
in modern history from 1861 to 1865. When it was over, memory of the War of 1812 dimmed to the
point that it virtually disappeared from the American conscience.

The war meant little to Britain. At first the public were horrified that it had ended without a treaty that
punished America. But quickly everyone lost interest. The treaty left many issues unresolved and
these took years to address through various negotiations. In 1817, the parts of Maine still claimed by
the British were returned with the exception of Moose Island. Each side agreed the same year to only
having a single naval ship on Lake Ontario, two on the upper lakes, and one on Lake Champlain.
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Commercial agreements were gradually renewed and improved upon. The 49th parallel from Lake
of the Woods to Stony Mountain was agreed as a boundary.

Public reaction to the treaty in Canada had initially been negative. Canadians looked warily at the
American forts that remained on the southern shores of the Great Lakes and wondered when the next
invasion would come. There was also a keen sense of wrongness about the way the Indians had been
abandoned. Canada’s fur trade depended on strong Indian nations and with each year that industry
weakened as the American settlers pushed west, cutting down forests as they went. Although the In-
dians were soon being pushed back before British North America as well, there was minimal blood-
shed. Disease, famine, and less-than-voluntary consignment to reserves more efficiently cleared the
way at less economic cost than war.

In Upper and Lower Canada there could not be said to be a clear sense of national identity arising out
of the war. But if Canadians did not yet know who they were, they knew who they were not. They
were not Americans and through the war had made clear their desire to never be so. Rather than look-
ing southward to America for inspiration, institutions, or forms of government, they looked instead
across the Atlantic to Britain. This led naturally to the creation of a federal government in 1867 when
the colonies confederated into the Dominion of Canada and adopted a British parliamentary model.
Although most Canadians failed to recognize it at the time, the Treaty of Ghent preserved the future
of what would become their nation. Combined with the new sense of selfthood fostered by the perfor-
mance of the Canadian militia during the war, the conditions of the peace set British North America
on the path that would in less than 50 years see the emergence of Canada as a distinct nation.
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The War of 1812 Timeline

www.1812timeline.com is our website that takes you through the events leading up
to, during and after the war with links to good historical resources and current events
planned for the bicentenary.

TIMELINES

The timeline also incorporates the characters from our graphic novel into the actual histori-
cal events, as well as allowing event organisers to add their 1812 bicentenary event to the
current event timeline to help spread the word and raise awareness.

Scan this QR code to visit the timeline:

Or type www.1812timeline.com into your web browser.
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